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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2021

I KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a. Establishment of the School

The Kenya School of Government (KSG) was established by the KSG Act No. 9 of 2012.lt
came into effect on I st July 2012. The KSG is the successor to the former Kenya Institute of
Administration (KIA), the former Kenya Development Learning Centre (KDLC), and the former
Government Training Institutes (GTIs) Baringo, Embu, Matuga and Mombasa. The School
therefore has four (4) Campuses.

b. Principal Activities
The principal activity of the School is transformation of the Public Service by inculcating
national values and developing core skills and competencies for quality service delivery in the
Public Service.

c. Key Management
The School's day to day management is under the following key organs
i. Council members

i. Director General/ CEO
ii. Management

d. FiduciaryManagement
The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2021
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were;

i Director General Prof. Ludeki Chweya
ii. Director Finance & Administration Prof. Nura Mohamed
iii. Director Academic Affairs Dr. Josphine Mwanzia
iv Director-Baringo Campus Dr. Solomon Letangule
v Director- Matuga Campus Dr. John Bii
vi Director- Mombasa Campus Dr. Tom Wanyama
vii Director- Embu Campus Dr. Anne Kangethe
viii Director - e-Learning and Development Mr. Joseph Ndung'u
ix Director- Learning and Development Dr. Rachael Ngesa

e. Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Kenya School of Government has established an audit committee composed of four council
members and head of internal audit department being the secretary of the committee. Their role
is to provide oversight responsibility in ensuring the School adheres to the statutory regulations
and the approved policies and procedures of the School as well as other relevant government
policies, procedures and pronouncement issued from time to time. Further, the Ministry of
Public Service and Gender receives the performance of the School on a quarterly basis as a
monitoring tool on the performance of the School.
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f. Headquarters
P.O.Box 23030-00604

Lower Kabete

NAIROBI, KENYA

g. Contacts
Telephone: +254-020-40 I 5000

254-727-496698
Email : directorgeneral@ksg.ac.ke

Website : www.ksg.ac.ke

h. Bankers
Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd
P.O Box 14959-00800

Nairobi, Kenya

National Bank
P.O Box 14959-00800

Nairobi, Kenya

Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O.Box 60000,00200

Nairobi, Kenya

i. IndependentAuditors
Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O.Box 30084-00100

Nairobi, Kenya

j Principal Legal Advisor
The Attorney General

State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O.Box 40112-00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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II COUNCIL MEMBERS

Prof. Gituro Wainaina- Chairmrn 64 Years upto 2nd Nlay 2022
Prof. Gituro wainaina holds a PhD in Agricultural Economics, Master in Business
Adminishation and Bachelor of Education. He has extensive working experience
including being a Director of the Social and Political Pillars under the Vision 2030
Delivery Secretariat and board member of various institutions including Capital
Market Authority. He is also a Professor at the Department of Management Science
at the University of Nairobi.

Prof. Ludeki Chweya PhD CBS -Director General and CEO 59 Years
Prof. Ludeki chweya holds a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) degree in Political
studies from Queen's University at Kingston, ontario, the Masters of Arts degree in
Government from the University of Nairobi, and the Bachelor of Arts (BA) in
Political Science and Arabic Language from the University of Nairobi. prof. chweya
hss vast experience in university teaching and research in International Relations and
Political Economy.

Prof. Chweya has many years of experience in public sector management and policy development acquired
mostly when he served as Permanent Secretary in the Govemment of Kenya.

Micah Origa - Council Member Representing Principal Secretary, The National
Treasury 43 Years
Micah origa holds a Master of Science Degree (MSC Finance) from the University
of Nairobi, Master of Business Administration (MBA) and a Bachelor of Commerce
(B.Com) degree. He is also Certified Public Accountant (CPA- K). Mr. Origa has
wide experience in public sector budget formulation, preparation, implementation
and monitoring.

He has sat in several other Boards over the last ten years. He is a member in the audit and risk as well as
finance and general purpose committees.

Joseph Musyoki - Member Representing Commission for University Education
52 Years
Joseph Musyoki is a holder of a Master of Science Degree (Zoolory) and a Bachelor
of Education Degree from Kenyatta University. Mr. Musyoki has vast experience,
spanning over 20 years, in research and higher education quality assurance. He is
currently in charge of Institutional Accreditation at the Commission.for University
Education. He is the chairperson for finance and general purpose and a member in
the leaming and development committees respectively.

Prof. Peter Muchiri Ngatia, EBS Council Member 70 Years upto 5th May 2022
Prof. Peter Muchiri Ngatia holds the position of Director of Training at Amref Health
Africa. He is a holder of BSC, MeD, MPH and Ph.D in Medical Education (Health
Professionals) from the University of ALBERTA, Edmonton, CANADA. prof.
Ngatia has many years of experience in Training and Management in the health
sector in Kenya and other African countries. He is the chairperson for the audit and
risk.

rtt,ti

Page 4



KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

COUNCIL MEMBERS (Continue)

Mr. Denis M. Mutahi - Alternate to the Principal Secretary, Ministry of
Public Service and Gender 52 Years
Mr. Mutahi holds a Master's of Science in Human Resource Planning and
Development and a Bachelors of Education. He is career civil servant with
over 20 years of civil service experience and currently serving as a Director
of Human Resource Management and Development, State Department for
Public Service. He is a member in the Human Resource Committee, Risk and
audit, Learning and development and Finance and General Purpose
committee.

Gatwiri Kirimi - Member 43 Years upto 6th February 2022
Ms. Gatwiri holds a Master's of International Business Administration,
Strategic Management Entrepreneurship and a bachelor of Science degree
(marketing) from United States International University. Currently she is a
Managing Director at Inforparts Technologies Limited. She is the
Chairperson for the Human Resource Committee and a member of Finance
and General Purpose committee

Prof. Adams Oloo - Member 53 Years upto 5th Nlay 2022
Prof. Adams Oloo, holds a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D) and Masters in
Political Science from University of Delaware, Masters in Government from
University of Nairobi and Bachelors in Business Administration and law
from the University of Nairobi. He is an advocate of the High Court and
currently an Associate Professor, Department of Political Science and Public
Administraton, University of Nairobi. He has experience in public
administration and public policy, political economy, global governance and
international relations. He is the Chairperson for Learning and development
committee and a member in risk and audit committee.

Dr. Ruth Agesa- Member representing Universities 58 years effective
22t2t2022

Dr. Ruth Agesa, holds a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D) in Peace and Conflict
studies from Masinde Muliro University of Science and Technologr, Masters
in International Studies from University of Nairobi Bachelor of music from
Kenyatta University. She has vast experience in the Education sector.

Rachael Musitia representin g Universities upto 2l 12 12022

Rachael Musitia has experience in formulation, monitoring and evaluation of
polices, programmes and projects. She also has experience in public policy
research and economic analysis in education sector.

l. , ,ir
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III DIRECTORS/ SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

Prof. Ludeki Chweya
Director General and CEO
Prof. Ludeki Chweya holds a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) degree in
Political Studies from Queen's University at Kingston, Ontario, the Masters

of Arts degree in Government from the University of Nairobi, and the
Bachelor of Arts (BA) in Political Science and Arabic Language from the
University of Nairobi. Prof. Chweya has vast experience

in university teaching and research in International Relations and Political Economy. Prof. Chweya
has many years of experience in public sector management and policy development acquired mostly
when he served as Permanent Secretary in the Government of Kenya.

Dr. Josphine Mwanzia

Director Academic Affairs
Dr. Josephine Mwanzia hdlds a Ph.D in Education from Victoria University
of Wellington, Master of Education (Educational Management) from
Universiti Brubei Darussalam and Bachelor of Education, Arts University of
Nairobi.

a

Prof. Nura Mohamed
Director - Finance and Administration
Prof. Nura Mohamed holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Financial Economics
from Central University, the Master of Business Administration (MBA) in
Finance from Nairobi University and the Bachelor of Commerce in Finance
from the same University. Prof. Mohamed has experience in research, and
development of curricula and training material.

Dr. Solomon Letangule
Director-Baringo Campus
Dr. Solomon Letangule holds a Ph.D., in Business Administration (Strategic

Management) from Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and

Technolory (JKUAT), MBA (Strategic Management) from Kenya Methodist
University (KEMLI), Bachelor of Arts (Economics and Sociolory) from
University of Nairobi.
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DIRECTORS/ SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE (Continue)

Dr. Tom Oundo Wanyama

Director- Mombasa Campus
Dr. Tom Oundo Wanyama holds a Ph.D in Environmental Sociology

from Kenyatta University, Master of Arts in Sociology and a Bachelor

of Arts from the same University. Dr. Wanyama has experience in
capacity development in the Public Sector, Training and Consultancy.

Mr. Joseph Ndung'u

Director - e-Learning and Development
Mr. Joseph Ndung'u holds the Master of Business Administration from
Moi University and Bachelor of Science (Electrical Engineering) from
University of Nairobi. Mr. Ndungu has a wealth of experience in
management, planning and organization of information and

communication technology.

Dr. Anne Kangethe
Director - Embu Campus
Dr. Kang'ethe holds a PhD and a Master's of Science degree in
Entrepreneurship (JKUAT), and Bachelors of Education Degree
(University of Nairobi). She has worked in the Public Service for over
Twenty (20) years. She has a wide experience in Management
Consultancy, Research and capacity building in the Public Service. She
has published Articles on various topical Public Service issues in Peer
Reviewed Journals and presented papers in both National and
International Conferences

Dr. Rachel Ngesa

Director- Learning and Development
Dr. Rachel Ngesa holds a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.), Master of
Education (Med) and a Bachelor of Education (Science) from Kenyatta
University. Dr. Ngesa has over 26 years' vast experience in public
sector strategic leadership and management, training, research, case

study development and program development for educational and
training institutions.

Dr. John Bii
Director- Matuga Campus
Dr. John Bii holds a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) in Business
Administration (strategic management and e-commerce) from Kabarak
University Kenya and Master of Business Administration majoring in
strategic managment from Mt. Kenya University. He has wide
experience in the Public Sector.
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JT'NE 2021

IV CHAIRMANIS REPORT

Introduction
It gives me great pleasure to present Kenya School of Government2020/2021 Annual report. We are

immensely grateful to our staff, participants, suppliers, donors, sponsors and collaborators for their
continued commitment to and support for our brand, despite the challenges encountered during the
year. Their support motivates us and gives us the impetus to drive the institution forward, to build on
and consolidate KSG's strong profile, good reputation and positive impact in the region.

These are unprecedented times - the extent of the COVID-I9 challenge is not something any of us

would have imagined. Unlike in the past when we have faced election-related volatility, the
pandemic arrived with high uncertainty and unpredictability. The effects are not limited to public
health; they affect all spheres of Kenyan society. Globally, the economy is experiencing a colossal
negative impact with the International Monetary Fund projecting severely impacted growth across

all regions.

Strategic Focus

Our strategic plan remains a key reference blueprint for the school, coming in the second year since

we started implementing the 2018-2022 Strategic Plans. We have aligned our strategic-focused
initiatives to all core areas of our operations within the school. This Integrated Annual Report
outlines some of the achievements attained in the year in review.

We have put in place strategies to take advantage of opportunities in the markets we operate in. We

firmly believe that implementation of the strategy will enable the corporation increase its financial
strength and yield targeted profits in the coming years.

Business Environment
The school put in place sustainable plans of action premised on our strategic plan. We also believe
that our core values of responsiveness, creativity and innovation, integrity, inclusivity, commitment

"and excellence shall guide us through. These values remain at the nerve center ofour stratery going
forward. Our stakeholders can, therefore, look forward to the future with confidence.

Financial performance
During the year 2020-2021, the School incurred a deficit of Kshs. 327M against the previous year
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JTJNE 2021

TV CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
deficit of Kshs. 490M. The performance improved due to grants received to finance salaries for staff
as well as increase in the number of online programs ran from quarter two of the financial year. On
the other hand the Ultra modern complex in Mombasa Campus was completed and furnishing will
be done in the subsequent year.

Sustainability reporting areas of focus
Our sustainability is anchored on our vision, mission and core values which determine the strategic
objectives of the school. Our role and aim is to create value for stakeholders and the society. This is

through tax remittance, corporate social responsibility and socio-economic empowerment of
marginalized groups and environmental conservation. The Council and management ensure that all
operations ofthe school are anchored on tenets ofintegrity, fairness and good corporate governance.

Various policies have been established by the council as a guiding framework and oversight of the
Corporation operations.

Future outlook
The rapid pace of life at the school reflects the challenge we all face of keeping KSG as a preferred
institution for many in the region and beyond. Every year brings new challenges. We must now
focus on the future to sustain excellence and maintain our position. We will continue to build on our
connections and partnerships across training, consultancy, research and advisory services to grow
our capacity and influence and firmly establish our place in the world.

C 2-pzz
Prof. Wainaina, Ph.D.
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL

Date
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V DIRECTOR GENERAL'S REPORT

Lastly, the School has invested substantially in building a strong culture of common purpose anddedication to the mission and ideals of the School through development of leadership competencies,sharing of ideas and the application of integrated operating systems across the

Prof. Ludeki Chrveya, Ph.D- Lz

During the year' the school did carry out a number of activities which includes mounting real-timevirtual Graduation ceremony for the Award of Diptomas 
"nd "r.tifi""tes to graduands wlro werelargely government officers' A totut oi iiz officeri graduat"a *iit'oiproma in sociat work. Theschool encontered challenges or ,"aurtion in number of pa(icipants wlro seek for face to facetraining due to ihe covlD tl p'nat,ii". nowever, the school has continued to market its coursesonline as well as in the print rnidia to creat; awareness of the courses offered in our campuses andthe number of participants has continued to increase.

During the period under review, the school rea]fzed.1ve1ue amounting to Kshs. r.5 bilion against atarget of Kshs'l'2 billion which is above flre target by l6%.The School also incu*ed a deficit ofKshs' 327M' The decline.in rev-enue and iperational expenditure ii *. resurt of emergence ofcovlD 19 where the School ai."ontirr.J'its 
_op"r.tio,is i;';;;, one of trre financiar year.However' the school introduced online courses from quarter two ina afew face to face programswhich improved tlre revenue performance during tlre year.

Management appreciates. financial support received from the Government of Kenya of Kshs. 40g.gmillion to finance salaries and also'receivJ a further Kshs.g0 ;iiii"" as deveropment grant tocomplete construction of administration block in Baringo and Matuga as well as hostel in Embucampuses.

The school also completed construction of Ultra-modern complex in Mombasa and is expected to befinanced by the Government of Kenya to funish the building ii ,r,.'rrur.quent year. Trris wia inreturn increase revenue to the scrrool and thus ensure serfsustenance in future.

DIRECTOR GDNERAL AND C.E.O

Page 10
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

VI REVIEW OF THE SCHOOL'S PERFORMANCE

Section 8l subsecton 2(f) of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires the accounting officer
to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity's performance against
predeterm ined objectives.

In line with KSG's Vision and Mission, four key result areas, which reflect KSG's mandate and
responsibilities in the realization of Kenya Vision 2030 have been identified and will be the pillars of
this Strategic Plan FY 2018/2019-202212023.The Key Result Areas are:
l. Capacity Building of the Public Service
2. Consultancy

3. Research and Advisory services

4. Institutional Transformation and Positioning

KSG will deliver on the Key Result Areas by implementing the following Strategic Objectives:
I Develop and implement relevant training programs
2 Promote research, scholarship and innovation
3 Enhance evidence-based research advisory services
4 Expand consultancy services to support delivery of quality services
5 Develop suitable infrastructure

6 Enhance corporate visibility and positioning of the School
7 Enhance good corporate governance and management in the School
8 Strengthen the human resource capacity of the School
9 Ensure financial sustainability of the School

Page 11
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

VII CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Good corporate governance is a fundamentalpart of the culture and practices by which an organization is
operated, regulated and controlled so as to fulfill its goals and objectives in a manner that adds value and
benefits all its stakeholders.

The Council of the Kenya School of Government is responsible for School's governance. Both the
Council and senior management of the School are committed to the highest levels of corporate
governance, which it considers critical in achieving the School's mandate. Accordingly, the School
therefore fosters a culture that values and rewards the highest ethical standards and personal and
corporate integrity. The Council also has a charter that is reviewed from time to time within a period not
exceeding five years.

The Role of the Council
The Council's responsibilities are broadly set out in the State Corporations Act, Cap.446 Laws of Kenya
as well as The Kenya School of Government Act, 2012 that constitutes the School as a state corporation.
Specifically, the Council defines the School's strategies, objectives and values and ensures that its
procedures and practices are in tandem to ensure effective control over strategic, financial, operational
and compliance issues.

The Directors bring a wealth of experience and knowledge to the Council's deliberations. Except for
direction and guidance on general policy, the Council delegates authority of its day-to-day activities to
the Management through the Director General. The Council nonetheless is responsible for the overall
stewardship of the School and assumes responsibility for effective direction and control.

Composition and removal of the Council
The Council comprises nine members including the Director General. Four of the Council members are

independent non-executive members including the Chairman. All non-executive council members retire
after a term of three (3) years from the date of appointment and are eligible for re- appointment for one
more term. With the exception of Director General, the remaining four Council members are institutional
representatives bringing on board closely-knit interests, experiences and balance from and by key School
stakeholders.

The Council members above shall cease to be members if they become bankrupt, incapacitated, resigns
in writing or is criminally convicted.

Council Meetings
The Council schedule of meetings is prepared annually in advance. The Council holds its regular
meetings at least once every three months and special meetings may be called when necessary.

Below is the attendance of the meetings by the Council Members:
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VII CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Council Member
No. of meetings
held in the year

No. of
meetings
attended

o/o of
attendance

I Prof. Gituro Wainaina 2 2 100%
2 Prof. Peter Ngatia 2 2 100%
3 Mr. Joseph Musyoki 2 I 50o/o

4 Mr. Micah Origa 2 2 t00%
5 Mr. Denis Mutahi 2 2 100%
6 Ms. Gatwiri Kirimi 2 2 t00%
7 Rachael Musitia 2 I 50%
8 Dr. Ruth Agesa 2 I 50%
9 Prof Adams Oloo 2 2 100%

COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL
The Council has the following Committees that meet under defined terms of reference set by the
Council. This is intended to facilitate efficient decision-making of the Council in discharging its duties
and responsibilities.
(a) Risk and Audit Committee
The Committee assists the Council in fulfilling its corporate governance responsibilities and in particular
to strengthen the effectiveness of the intemal audit function; maintaining oversight on intemal control
systems; provision of general oversight in risk and compliance matters; and ensuring quality, integrity,
effectiveness and reliability of the School's risk management framework.
Below is the attendance of the Committee

(b) Learning and Development Committee
The Committee's mandate is to ensure the Learning and Development in general is functional.
Specifically, the Committee's responsibilities include identifying learning service challenges and
opportunities in the School and ensuring that they are resolved; review any changes on policy issues on
standards, quality assurance and research; liaise with the stake holders on matters of quality of training

Council Member
No. of meetings
held in the year

No. of
meetings
attended

o/o of
attendance

I Prof. Peter Ngatia 4 4 100%
2 Denis Mutahi 4 4 100%
3 Micah Origa 4 4 t00%
4 Charles Tirok (Co-opted) 4 4 100%
5 Prof. Adams Oloo 4 4 100%

Page 18



KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMBNT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2T

VII CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
curriculum; and undertake comprehensive quarterly evaluation of standards, quality assurance programs
in the School.

Below is the attendance of the committee members in the

c) Human Resource Committee
The Committee reviews and provides recommendations on issues relating to all human resource matters
including career progression, performance management, training needs, staff recruitment, staff
placement, promotions, demotions, discipline, and staff welfare.

Below is the attendance of the committee members in the

(d) Finance and General Purpose Committee
The Committee assists the Council to fulfill its oversight responsibilities relating to the School's finance,
information and technology, procurement and related activities.

Below is the attendance of the committee members in the

Council Member
No. of meetings
held in the year

No. of
meetings
attended

Yo of
attendance

I Prof. Adams Oloo 5 5 l00Yo
2 Prof Peter Ngatia 5 5 100%
3 Mr. Denis Mutahi 5 5 l00Yo
4 Mr. Joseph Musyoki 5 5 100%
5 Rachael Musitia 5 I 20%

Council Member
No. of meetings
held in the year

No. of
meetings
attended

o/o of
attendance

I Gatwiri Kirimi 7 7 t00%
2 Prof. Adams Oloo 7 6 86%
3 Mr. Denis Mutahi 7 7 100%
4 Prof. Michael Lokuruka 7 4 s7%
5 Prof. Peter Ngatia 7 6 86%

Council Member
No. of meetings
held in the year

No. of
meetings
attended

%o of
attendance

I Mr. Joseph Musyoki 7 7 100%
2 Mr. Micah Origa 7 7 100%
3 Mr. Denis Mutahi 7 7 l00Yo
4 Ms. GatwiriKirimi 7 7 100%
5 Charles Tirok (Co-opted) 7 7 100%
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Succession PIan

ln order to ensure succession planning and management in the Council, the School has a mechanism of
ensuring a staggered appointment or rotation of Council members so as to ensure proper skills mix and
infusion of skills and experience from time to time.

Induction and Training
The School recognizes the importance of having a well informed and fully empowered Council and
Management. In this regard, relevant training and capacity development opportunities are organized to
equip Council Members and staff with skills and knowledge necessary to effectively perform their
responsibilities.

Conflict of Interest and Ethics
The Council Members and management are required to make disclosures of any transaction in which
they have interest and which would constitute a conflict of interest and abstain from voting for the case
of Council members when such matters are being considered. Further, the Council and the management
are required to adhere to ethical standards that govern the School's activities. In order to ensure
compliance each council member is required to declare in writing before commencement of each
meeting whether he or she has any conflict on any of the agenda before them. This is documented in the
minutes as well.

Council Remuneration
The Council members are entitled to sitting and other allowances (where applicable) for every meeting
attended, within the set Government guidelines. The aggregate amount of emoluments paid to the
Council Members during the financial year for services rendered are disclosed in the financial
statements.

Council Performance

The Council invites State Corporations Advisory Committee to carry out evaluation of the Council on an
annual basis. The Council also carry's out self evaluation annually to review and audit its role and
success or otherwise to meet the challenges envisaged at the beginning of each year as guided by the
Council Charter.
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VIII MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I Operational and financial performance
Since emergence of COVID l9 pandemic in March 2020, the School has continued to offer online
courses to ensure sustainance and adopt to the changes in the industry. However, the first online
Strategic Leadership Development Program commenced during the year. During the period also the
School in collaboration with SRC, rolled out training for the Ministries, Departments, Agencies,
State Corporations and County Governments on the best practice in development ofjob descriptions
and job analysis in order to address remuneration disparities in the public service.

The Kenya School of Government Council in line with its mandate of ensuring public service
transformation, approved additional thirty two new training programs. These new training programs
were occasioned by the rapidly evolving work environment having been conceptualized through a

rigorous stakeholder validation process during the curricula development period.

The School also rolled out Social Protection Program and the first cohort practitioners graduated in
June 2021. The School also assists other Countries in the area of governance. For instance, during
the year, the School signed a contract with Puntland Institute of Public Administration and

Management (IPAM) to establish a governance system capable of triggering development for the
Government of the Puntland State of Somalia

One of the mandate of the School is to carry out research. During the year, a research titled
Attitudinal Individualities Affecting Youth Participation in Agriculture was carried out. The paper

addresses real issues that affect our society today and it will published in a series based on thematic
areas as one of the contribution to big 4 agenda.

The School on the other hand for the first time mounted real-time virtual Graduation Ceremony for
the Award of Diplomas and certificates to graduands who were largely government officers. A total
of 232 officers graduated in Diploma in Social Work.

The School has been encontering challenges ofreduction in revenue due to non face to face courses

that have been the main method of generating income. However, the School has continued to market
its courses online as well as in the print media to create awareness of the courses offered in our
campuses and the number of participants has continued to increase.

The School also entered into partnership with the United Nations International Labour Organization
(UN-ILO) to support the Isiolo Youth Innovation Centre. The Centre, which focuses on the
empowerrnent and development of youth, especially from marginalized areas, encourages them to
contribute to the national development agenda. The centre was established in a bid to, among thers;
constructively engage the youth thereby keeping them away from social vices in the society such as

drug abuse, radicalization, crime, and cattle rustling.
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VIII MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
2 Compliance with statutory requirements

The School in its business affairs complies with the statutory regulations such as Public Finance

Management Act, 2012 and abides by all Government laws accordingly. The School has continued

to comply with all statutory requirements on a monthly basis.

3 Major risks facing the School

i. The School's major risk is operational risk. This is due to emergence of COVID 19 pandemic that

led to slowing down of activities until the second quarter of the financial year.

ii. The School also encountered liquidity risk during the year. However, the management sought

financial assistance from the Government to finance salaries.
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Ix CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY/ SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Kenya School of Government exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind
everything we do. It's what guides us to deliver our stratery which is founded on training, research
and advisory services, consultancy services, institutional strengthening and positioning, human
capital and talent management and financial growth and sustainability; putting the customer citizens
first, delivering relevant services and improving operational excellence.Below is a brief highlight of
the School's achievements:

I Sustainability strategy and profile
Our sustainability is anchored on our vision, statement of purpose and core values which
determine the strategic objectives of the School. Our role is to ensure that our business and by
extension our various stakeholders are able to grow in a sustainable manner and not in the short
term.

Our aim is to create value for shareholders and the society alike and in order to achieve this; we
focus on several key areas:

a. Economic.' Kenya School of Government continues to contribute to the economy through the
remittance of taxes such as a pay as you earn (PAYE), withholding tax, withholding vat excise
duty and value added tax (VAT).

b. Socio-Economic: The School has continued to engage AGPO mostly women, youths and
persons with disability through request for quotations method of procurement.

2 Environmental performance
KSG invested in indigenous, medicinal and fruit trees that were planted during the rainy season
across campuses.

3 Employee welfare
The School has Human Resource Management Policy and Procedure Manual seek to assist the
School in implementation of its strategic plan to be consistent with the legal framework
governing employer-employee relationship in Kenya and intemationally recognized best
practice. The purpose of the manual is to facilitate the attraction, development and retention of
high performing staff. The policy is reviewed from time to time.
The School has continued to train staff on short courses both held within the School and outside

the School such as professional bodies in order to improve skills to staff. Further, the School

has continued to reimburse fees for those who out of their own initiative have embarked on a

course relevant to their duties in order to manage careers. Appraisals and reward systems were

also reviewed in the year 2020-2021 and appraisals carried out accordingly.

4 Market place practices
The School has ensured that:

a. Responsible competition proctice: In order to ensure responsible competition practices with
issues like anti-corruption, the School has been ensuring that it undertakes all its activities
within the laws of Kenya. Also inorder to ensure fair competition and respect for competitors
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IX CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY/ SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
the School has continued to engage the Government for assistance that they may require.

b. Responsible supply chain and supplier relations: The School has ensured that it complies with
Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2015 while carrying out procurement operations in
order to ensure good business practice. Further, the School has a procurement and procedure

manual that guides operations in procurement.

c. Responsible marketing and odvertisement: The School has been carrying out advertisements
on"my Gav " platform as well as on its website for new and existing programs.

il. Product stewardship.' In order to protect consumer rights and interests, our customers are
provided with information regarding the course requirements before admission and during the
commencement of the course. Further, the School ensures confidentiality while interacting with
customers.

5 Community engagement
The School participates in many activities in its effort to contribute socially to the society in
which it operates

a. K,SG Ogopa Football Club;the school sponsors a Football club that is in the Nairobi West
Regional level of the Kenya Premier League

b. Disabtlity Access in buildings; the school's properties have been modified to be disability
friendly and allow for access for persons living with disabilities (PWDs) with minimal
inconvenience.
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X REPORT OF THE COUNCIL
The Council submit their report together with the financial statements of Kenys School of
Government for the year ended June 30, 2021 which show the state of the School's affairs.

Principal activities
The Principal activities of the School has continued to be according to Article 5(2) of the KSG Act
2012 which is to provide training, research and consultancy services designed to inform public
policy, promote national development and standards of competence and integrity in the public
service.

Results

The results of the School for the year ended June 30, 2021 are set out on page 29. Below is a
summary of the performance of the School during the year.

Total Revenue

Total Expenditure
Other gains/ losses

Transfer to Treasury
Deficit for the year

2021

kshs
1,469,093,420

(1,732,641,576)
(63,698,279\

(327

2020

kshs

1,540,929,166

(2,012,621,144)

6,220,506
(25,000,000)

(490,472,472)

Council Members
The Council members who served during the year are shown on page 4-5 in accordance with the
Kenya School of Government Act 2012.

Auditors
The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the School in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.
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XI STATEMENT OF COUNCIL RF,SPONSIBILITIES
under the provisions of section 8l of the o:ll:Finance ManagemenrAct,2012 and section l7 oftlte Kenya Schoot of.Government Act 20l2,KSG.councir itr.qirri to prepare financiarstaternentswhich give a true and fair view of the stat"-of affairs ar ,h; il Jil;rinanciar year and trre operatingresults of the school' The council is also required to ensure tt.t trr. schoor keeps proper accountingrecords which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financiar ;";,i", of the schoot. The councir isalso responsible for safeguarding trre assets ortne school.

The council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the school,s financiar statements,which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the school for and as at the end of thefinancial year ended on June 30,2021.The responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financialmanagemelrt arrangenlents and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reportingperiod; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records which disclose with reasonabre accuracy at anytime the financial position of the school; (iii) designing, imprementing and maintaining internarcontrols relevant to the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financiar statements and ensuring thatthese are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) make accountingestimates that are reasonable in tlre circumstances (v) safe guarding the assets of the schoor; (vi)selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies.

The council accepts responsibility for the school's financiat statements whicrr have been preparedusing appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable ana frrauntludgments and estimates,in conformity with lnternational Public s."to, A".ounting standards (lpsAS), and in the mannerrequired by Public Finance Management Act2ol2 and the Kenya schoot of Government Act 2012.The council is of the opinion that the school's financial statements give true and fair view of thestate of the school's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2021 and of the school,sfinancial position as at that date' The council further, confirms the completeness of the accountingrecords maintained for the school which have been relied upon in the preparation of the schoolsfinancial statements as well as the adequacy of the systerns of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the council to indicate that the school will not remain a goingconcern for at reast the next twerve months from the date of this ,,.r"^.n,.

Approvat of the financial statemcnts

fftsT;:fJinancialstatementswereapprovedbytheCounciton............. .....ZOZtandsigned

KEI$YA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annua I Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEARENDED 30 JUNE 202 I

Piof Gituro Wainaina, phD.
Prof. LudekiChweya, ph.D.,

Director General & Chief Executive Officr

?

Chairman of the Council
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAT

En honci ng A cc'o unt a bi I i ty

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooioo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report, which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework, accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have
a direct effect on the financial statements.

B. Report on Laufulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended
purpose.

C. Report on Etfectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance,
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented
by those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of
the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the
financial year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution,
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three
parts of the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya School of Government
set out on pages 28 to 67, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya School ofGovernmentfor the year ended 30 June, 2021



policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have
obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kenya School of Government as at 30 June , 2021,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with the lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis)
and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Kenya School of
Government Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Non-Current Assets

1.1 Land without Ownership Documents

The statement of financial position, as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements,
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.6,878,120,315. As previously
reported, included in the balance are freehold parcels of land owned by the School at
Mombasa and Matuga campuses valued at Kshs.736,200,000 and Kshs.47,500,000
respectively whose title deeds were not provided for audit review. Further, the fixed
asset register maintained by the School did not have information detailing the asset
description, cost, date of acquisition, location, depreciation charge for the year, the
accumulated depreciation and net book value of the assets.

1.2 Excluded Leasehold Land

The statement of flnancial position, as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements,
reflects leasehold land balance of Kshs.1,946,543,164. As previously reported, the
balance excludes six (6) parcels of land valued at Kshs.1,677,336,407 located at
Lower Kabete that were illegally hived off and allocated to private individuals. Although
available information indicates that these allocations have since been revoked by a
court of law, the School has not taken back possession of the six parcels of land and
the respective ownership documents are yet to be obtained.

1.3 Non-Valuation of Fully Depreciated Assets

As reported previously, the School carried in its books, assets which are fully
depreciated but accrued benefits from their usage. Although the valuation process has
commenced and part of the headquarters assets have been valued, the valuation
amounts were not incorporated into the financial statements of the year under review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of the property, plant
and equipment balance of Kshs.6,878,120,315 could not be confirmed.

2.0 Long Outstanding Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange and non-
exchange transactions balance of Kshs.1,282,610,450 which includes an amount of
Kshs.1 ,209,787,094 that has been outstanding for over 90 days. lncluded in the

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya School of Government for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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balance are amounts due from defunct lnstitutions of Kshs.29,789,627, staff debtors
of Kshs.8,996,267 and foreign customers of Kshs.8,203,437 all totalling to
Kshs.46,989,331. Management has not explained why the credit period was extended
to the concerned institutions and individuals despite the School's credit policy
requirement of advance payment before the commencement of any courses or
activities.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the receivables balance of
Kshs.1 ,209,787,094 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya School of Government
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Budgetary Contro! and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final expenditure
budget and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.1,961,346,395 and
Kshs.1 ,732,641,576 respectively resulting to an under-expenditure of
Kshs.228,704,819 or 1 2o/o of the budget.

The under-expenditure affected the planned activities of the school and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

2. Unresolved Prior Year Audit Matter

ln the audit report of previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements and Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources. Although Management indicated that the matters have been resolved, in
the progress on follow-up on prior year auditor's recommendation section of the
flnancial statements , the matters remained unresolved as the issues are yet to be
deliberated by the National Assembly's Public Investments Committee.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lavrfulness
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and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that,
nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources
have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Delayed Construction of Tuition Block at Kenya School of Government (KSG)
- Baringo Campus

The Kenya School of Government entered into a contract agreement with a local
contractor on 14 July, 2020.The contract for the proposed construction of a tuition
block at KSG - Baringo campus was at a contract sum of Kshs.623,474,422. The works
were to be completed in 130 weeks starting 30 July, 2020 and ending on
29 December,2022. However, an audit verification exercise of the project carried out
in March, 2022 established that certified works amounted to Kshs.55,532,608 or 8.9o/o

of the contract sum against a time lapsed of 87 weeks or 67%, an indication that the
construction works were behind schedule. No satisfactory explanation was provided
for the delay.

ln the circumstances, it remains doubtful whether the outstanding works will be
completed within the agreed timeline.

2. Construction of a Convention Centre at KSG - Embu Campus

The construction works for the tuition block at KSG-Embu Campus were awarded on
29 June, 2020 to a local contractor at a contract sum of Kshs.1,129,696,989. The
project was to be completed in 130 weeks to end on 29 December,2022. However, a
review of progress reports and physical veriflcation of the project carried out in
Aprll,2022 revealed that payments and certified works stood at Kshs.75,571,128 or
7% completion level against elapsed period being 87 weeks or 670/o. Further, the
contractor had temporarily left the site due to delayed payment of certified works. This
is an indication that the project was significantly behind schedule.

ln the circumstances, the value for money paid to the contractor may not be achieved
due to construction delays.

3. Delayed Construction of Tuition Block at KSG - Matuga Campus

The contract for the construction of a tuition block at KSG - Matuga campus was
awarded to a local contractor at a contract sum of Kshs.745,050,231.33 for a contract
period of 156 weeks commencing on 7 July, 2020 and is expected to be completed by
7 July, 2023. A review of the progress report and physical verification exercise carried
out in April,2022, revealed that, 92 weeks after commencement of the works, the
value of works done and certifled amounted to Kshs.91,805,478 representing only
17o/o completion level against 59% of time lapsed. The project, therefore, is
significantly behind schedule. No satisfactory explanation was provided for the slow
progress of works which may lead to cost escalation.

ln the circumstances, the value for money for the expenditure incurred on the project
may not be achieved due to the delay in completion of the project.
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4. Stalled Construction of Deputy Director's House at KSG - Baringo Campus

The contract for the proposed completion works for the Deputy Director's house at
Baringo campus referenced No. KSG/BAR/039/2013-2014 was awarded in 2014 to a
local contractor at a contract sum of Kshs.4,426,212. According to the contract, the
construction was to be completed by September,2016. However, an audit verification
exercise carried out in April,2022 revealed that the contractor abandoned the site in
2017 due to non-payment of certifled works valued at Kshs.2,001,756 as per certiflcate
number 0'1 of 19 October, 2017. The completed works have since degraded and
deteriorated. Management did not provide satisfactory explanations for the failure to
complete the project.

ln the circumstances, value for money on the project may not be achieved.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities
that govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Gonclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Composition of the School Council

During the financial year under audit review, the School's Council comprised nine
members' including the Director General charged with the responsibility of the
governance and overall stewardship of the school. However, the Council did not have
two representatives from the Public Service Commission and the Kenya lnstitute for
Public Policy Research and Analysis (KIPPRA) as provided in Section 6(1)(h) and (i)
of the Kenya School of Government Act, 2012 .

The School's Council was therefore not properly constituted as per the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall
governance were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.
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Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
School's ability to continue sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the School or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring
that the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public
resources are applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the School's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that
effective processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities
in relation to overall governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy
and etfectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-Genera!'s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the PublicAuditAct,20l5 and submitthe audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
lSSAls will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya School of Government for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
6



I

!
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.
My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be materials weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
controls components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financialstatements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the School's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the flnancial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the School to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the School to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures, as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya School of Government for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA N CBS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

19 September,2022

a
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

XIII STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Note

\
REVENUES
Revenue from Non exchange

Government grant I I

Revenue from Exchange transactions
Training fees

Research and consultancy

Catering and Accomodation

Conferences and Workshops

Other income
TOTAL REVENUE

t2

467,012,210 341,560,927

2021
kshs

544,286,247

60,622,552

231,289,595

85,002,727

80,881,089

2020

kshs

483,532,767

57,821,881

307,520,074
207,555,349

142,937,169

1,469,093,420 1,540,929,166

OPERATING EXPENSES
Council expenses

Employee costs

Repairs and maintenance

General Expenses

Depreciation
Amortisation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Other gains/ (losses)

Gain/ (loss) on disposal/ demolition of assets

Gain (Loss) on foreign exchange transations

Surplus/ (deficit) before tax

Taxation

Surplus/ (deficit) before tax

Remission to National Treasury

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

1,732,641,576 2,012,621,144

(64,264,582)

566,303 6,220,506
(63,698,279)

(327,246,435) (465,472,472)

(327 (465,472,472)

(25,000,000)

(327,246,435) _(490,472,472)_

l3
14

t5
t7
l8
l9

5,537,221
1,013,840,647

33,446,842
432,069,959

222,300,997

25,446,011

10,942,602

1,030,293,861

56,496,199

669,710,478

219,732,003

25,446,011

t6
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Asat30J une202l

XTV STATEMENT Otr FINANCIAL POSITION

Note 2021
lahs

2020

kshs

TotaI Assets

Current Linbitities
Trade and other payables from exchange 25

Net Assets
Revaluation reserves
Accunrulated surplus
Deferred Income

TotaI nct assets anrl liabilities

The financial statements as

6,979,120,315

1,946,5431164

4,4 90,903
8,929,154.392

. 47,695,441

71292,610,450

154,959
1d5,250,000

754
1,743,966,504 2,027 97

10,573,020.986 t9.916

l,3g4,ggl,g77 6s
1,877 I,t 65,137,530

Non- current assets
Property plant & equipment
Leasehold land
Investments

..and signed

9,478.982.386

_{q,s?3,0rgEq r0,644.0rt21L

t8

l9
20

6,640,465,746

l,g7l,ggg,l75
4,474,599

Currcnt Asscts
Inventories
Receivables from exchange & non exchange
Investments

Staff car loan & Mortgage
Cash and castr equivalent

2t
22

20

23

24

33,456,352
1,200,196,725

154,296

101,000,000

692,293,024

4,539,729,060
1J04,360,295
3,333,940,654

4,539,729,060

1,631,606,730

3 .596

set out on
on its behalf

pages 29 to 54
by:

were approved by Council on
t

Director General/
Prof. Ludeki Chweya, phD,CBS,.

Date:

lrflr, i.,ir^a-
Head of Accounts

,lL"r'*
Chairman
Prof. Gituro Wainaincl

Date:S€*iltru- G,)rrz
IcpAK No.9g11

Dare: dqln*
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Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

XV STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Balance as at 30 June 2019

Deficit for the year

Additions
Amortisation
Balance as at 30 June 2020

Revaluation
reserves

IGhs
4,539,728,060

Balance as at 1 July 2020

Deficit for the year

Additions
Amortisation
Balance as at 30 June 2021

Accumulated
surplus

Kshs
2,122,079,202
(490,472,472)

518,367,855
(77,442,851)

4,539,728,060 1,631,606,730 3,307,547,596

4,539,728,060 1,631,606,730 3,307,547,596
(327,246,435)

Development
Grant
Kshs

2,866,622,592

Total
IGhs

9,528,429,854
(490,472,472)

518,367,855
(77,442,851)

9,478,882,386

80,000,000
(53,606,942)

9,478,892,396
(327,246,435)

80,000,000

(53,606,942)
4,539,72E,060 3J33,940,654 9,178,029,009
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XVI STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating deficit
Depreciation
Amortisation of land

Amortisation of defered income

Loss on disposal of assets

Operating surplus before working capital changes

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
(lncrease)/ decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Interest accrued from Treasury bonds

INYESTING ACTIYITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment

Redemption of Treasury bond

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government grant

Mortgage and Car loan

Grant from donors

Net cash generated from financing activities

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning

Cash and cash equivalent at end ofthe year

(526,746,317)

510,182,739
(101,000,000)

8,185,1 l6
35,750,000 417,367 ,855

(424,127,270) (95,754,154)

692,293,024 799,047,179

23 268,165,754 692,293,024

Note

l8
t9

l6

20

l8
20

2021
IGhs

(327,246,435',)

222,300,997

25,446,011
(53,606,942)

66,790,782

2020
Kshs

(490,472,472)

219,732,003

25,446,011
(77,442,851)

(66,315,587)

(14,229,089)
(82,423,725)
229,854,347

(322,737,309)

(8,610,412)

168,860,339

163,235,979

66,885,915

(16,868)

748,597

(16,868)

66,869,047 731,729

(526,746,317) (536,797,058)

22,943,320
(513,853,739)

80,000,000
(44,250,000)
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

XVIII NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I General Information
Kenya School of Government is established by and derives its authority and accountability from
Kenya School of Government Act 2012. The entity is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya
and is domicied in Kenya. The entities principal activity is to provide training, consultancy, research

and advisory services to the Public Service.

2 Statement of Compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the measurement at
re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment and financial instruments at fair
value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and liabilities at their present value
where applicable. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (lPSAs) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the School's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note No. 5

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the School.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corprorations Act and the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The
accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3 Adoption of new and revised standards
i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective for the year ended 30 June

2021.
Standard

improvements to
IPSAS

) Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate references to IPSAS
impairment in place of the current references to other intemational and/

b.) IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Property, Plant and Equipment
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should have been
when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public

s was

Applicable: lst January 2021

accounting frameworks.

Sector Standards
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS con tinued

ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year
ended 30 June 2021.

Applicable: lst January 2023.

The objective of this standard is to improve the relevancy, faithful

Standard Im
Other improvements to
IPSAS (continue)

c) TPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash generating assets and IPSAS
Impairment of cash generating assets.

to ensure consistency of impairment guidance to
revalued assets in the scope of IPSAS 17, Property, Plant

uipment and IPSAS 31, Tangible Assets

d) IPSAS 33, First time adoption of accrual basis international public
sector accounting standards (IPSASs)

Amendments to the implementation guidance on deemed cost in IPSAS
33 to make it consistent with the core principles in the standard.

This standard is not to the School

Standard Effective date and impact
IPSAS 4I: Financial
Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial
reporting of financialassets and liabilities that willpresent relevant and
useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment
of the amounts, timing and uncertainity of an entity's future cash flows.
IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29,by
o Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the
objective for which the asset is held:

o Applying a single forward looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing: and
o Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a
strong link between an entity's risk management strategies and the
accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk
management strategy.

This standard is not applicable to the School as it does not hedge its
financial instruments

IPSAS 42: Social benefits

Page 35



KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

representatives and comparability of the information that a report
entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The
information provided should help users of the financial statements and
general purposes financial reports assess:

a.) The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity;
b.) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes;

) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity's
financialposition and cash flows

This standard is not applicable to the School as it does not offer social

iii. Early adoption of standards
The School did not adopt early any new or amended standards in year 2020-2021.

t

Amendments to other
IPSAS resulting from
IPSAS 41, Financial
Instruments

Applicable: lst January 20232

a.) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

b.) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS
4l was issued.

c.) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which
were inadvertently omitted when [PSAS 4l was issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

a. Revenue recognition
i. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

The entity recognises revenues from fees when the event occurs to the extent that would give rise to
a liability to repay the amount. Other non-exchange revenues are recognised when it is probable that
the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and
the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other Government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other Government entities are measured at fair value
and recognised on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) ifthe transfer is
free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the
asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. Development/ capital grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the
assets that has been acquired using such funds.

Deferred income
This relates to grants received from the Government of Kenya and development partners for
purposes of capital expenditure. This amount is amortised gradually and the amortised amount
recognised in the statement of financial performance at the same rate as depreciation on an annual
basis.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions
1) Rendering of services

The sale of services is recognised in the year in which the School delivers the service to the
customer, the customer has accepted the service and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

2) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated
with the transaction will flow to the entity.
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3.) Interest fncome
Interest income is accrued using the effective yield m'ethod. The effective yield discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.
The method is applied to the principal outstanding amount to determine interest income each period.

4.) Rental Income
This is income arising from letting out the School's houses to mostly its staff.

b. Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Costs includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of financial performance as incurred. Where an asset is
acquired in a non exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured
at its fair value.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and are recognised in the
statement of fi nancial performance.

Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress relates
mainly to the costs of incomplete works on buildings, other civil works and installations.

Depreciation is provided on the cost/valuation of the assets on straight line basis at rates designed to
write down the cost of each asset or revalued amount to its residual values over their estimated useful
life. The annual rates in use are:

Rate
Buildings 2.00o/o

Plant & equipment 12.50%

Furniture & fittings 12.50o/o

Linen & beddings 1250%
Motor vehicles 25.00%
Computers 30.00%
Softwares 20.00%
Library books 5.00%
Leasehold land Over the period of the lease

A full year's depreciation is recognised in the year of purchase and none in the year of disposal.
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c. Leases

Finance lease are leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the School. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalised at the

commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value

of the future minimum lease payments. The School also recognises the associated lease liability at

the inception of the lease. The liability recognised is measured as the present value of the future
minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there
is no reasonable certainity that the School will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease

term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease

term.

d. Inventories
Inventories is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its
fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as

follows:
Raw materials.' purchase cost using the weighted average cost method;

Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

After initial recognition, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories comprises purchase price, import duties, transportation and handling charges and
is determined on weighted average price method. Inventories are recognised as an expense when
deployed for utilisation or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the School.

e. Financial Instruments
1.) Financial ossets

Initiol recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: recognition and measurements

are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held to
maturity investments or available for sale financial assets as appropriate. The School determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.
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Held lo maturity
Non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are

classified as held to maturity when the School has the positive intention and ability to hold it to
maturity. After initial measurement, held to maturity investments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in surplus or deficit.

Impairment offinancial assets

The School assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset

is impared. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following
indicators:
i.) The debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty;
ii.) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

iii.) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
iv.) Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows.

2.) Initial recognition ond measurement offinancial liabilities
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit as appropriate. The School determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. The School determines te classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus directly
attributable transactions costs.

f. Nature and purpose of reserves

The School creates and maintains reserves in terms of revaluation reserves. This reserve is a non
cash reserves created to reflect the true value of the asset when the market value of the assets is
higher or lower than the book value. Any increase or decrease as a result of revaluation of the asset
is posted in this account as per the International Public Sector Accounting Standards.
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g. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short term deposits, on call
deposits and highly liquid investments within original maturity of three months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of the
financialyear.

h. Retirement benefit obligation
The School operates a defined contribution retirement benefits plan for its employees, The assets

are held in a separate trustee administered scheme. The scheme is funded by contributions from
both the employees at7.5%o and employer at a rate of l5Yo of employees basic pay.

The School and the employees also contribute to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF), a
national defined contribution scheme. The School's contributions obligation under the scheme is
limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and is currently at Kshs. 200 per
employee per month.

i. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at
the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Any
foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sefflement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

j. Budget information
The original budget for the FY 2020-2021 was approved by the Council in January 2020.
Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance
with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to
the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the
final budget.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved
budget is presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. The adjustments
to amounts in the financial statements are made in the formats and classification schemes adopted
for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.
A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts as per the statement of financial performance has been
presented on page 33-34 ofthese financial statements.
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k. Intangible asset

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impariment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in statement of financial
performance in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible
assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

l. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the School has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Where the School expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

1.) Contingent liabilities
The School does not recognise a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the
notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential is remote.

2.) Conttngent assets

The School does not recognise a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the School in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets
are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential
will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

m. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the year June 30,2021.

n. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.)
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o. Taxes

Current income tax
The School has not provided for taxation as it has applied for exemption under the income tax act
through the Cabinet Secretary for the National Treasury.

Sales tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:
i.) When the sales tax incured on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable;
ii.) When receivables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

p. Comparative figures
Comparative figures for water bottling sales have been amended to separate between income and
expenditure in compliance with IPSAS l(S.48). Further, other expenses reflected in note 16 have
been clarified further by disclosing library expenses separtely from other income.

5 Significant Judgement and Sources of Estimation uncertainity
The preparation of the School's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
year. However, uncertainity about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future
periods.

a.) Estimates and assumptions

The School based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
School. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
b.) Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal;
i.) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the School;
ii.) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes;
iii.) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed;
iv.) Availability of funding to replace the asset;

v.) Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

Page 43



KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

c.) Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.
Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. The
School has made a general provision for bad debts at the rate of ll%o.

7 Retained Earnings
The retained earnings represent net income left over to finance the School's activitites mainly capital
expenses.

8 Related party disclosures

Nature of related party relationships

The School regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly or to exercise significant influence over the School or vice versa. Related
parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the School, holding 100% of the School's
equity interest. Other related parties include:
i. The parent ministry- Ministry of Public Service & Gender
ii. The National Treasury
iii. County Government
iv. Key Management

9 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The School's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and
effects of changes in foreign currency. The School's overall risk management policies are set out by
the Council and implemented by the management, and focus on the unpredictability of changes in
the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effects of such risks on its
performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The School however, does not hedge any risks and
that credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The School's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
i. Market risk

The Council has put in place an internal audit function to assist in assessing the risk faced by the
School on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal accounting
and operational controls.
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i. Market risk (Continue..)

Market risk is the risk arising from the changes in market prices, such as interest rate and foreign
exchange rates which will affect the School's income. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. Overall responsibility for managing the risk rests with the Audit and Risk Committee.
The School's finance department is responsible for development of detailed risk management
policies and for the day to day implementation of those policies.

During the year 2019-2020 from the month of March 2020,the Government of Kenya discontinued
activities and closed down all training institutions due to the emergence of COVID 19. This affected
the performance of the School since admissions of participants could not take place.

ii. Credit Risk
The School has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a customer will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer taking into account its past experience and
other factors.The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for
doubtful receivables, estimated by the School's management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current and economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
School's maximum to credit risk is made as follows

Total amount
Kshs.

Kshs

Fully performing
Kshs.

Kshs
Past due Kshs.

Kshs

Impaired
Ifths.
Kshs

1,406,003,008

31,267,553

268,165,754

1,406,003,009

31,267,553

268,165,754
1.705.436.315

At 30 June 2021

Receivables from exchange

transactions

Receivables from non
exchange transactions

Bank balances

Total 1,705,436,315

At 30 June 2020

Receivables from exchange

transactions

Receivables from non
exchange transactions

Bank balances

1,274,746,935

10,703,908

692,293,024

1,247,933,143

10,703,908

692,293,024

26,813,692

Total 11977,743,767 1,950,930,075 26,813,692
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The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
transacting with the School. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the
allowance for uncollectible amounts that the School has recognised in the financial statements is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The School has significant
concentration of credit risk on amounts due from the National and County Governments.

iii. Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the School's council. The School
manages liquidity risk through continous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the School. The amounts disclosed in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than I
month
IGhs

Between 1-3

months

Kshs

Over 3

months

Kshs
Total
Kshs

At 30 June202l
Trade payables

Payments received in advance

Third party payments

Retentions

VAT payable

Audit fees

Service Gratuity
Other payables 133,107,667

2,000,000

50,242,720

476,465,465

56,296,590

149,275,046

36,439,031

428,344,169

3,500,000

59,322,199

428,344,169

476,465,465

56,296,590

149,275,046

36,438,031

5,500,000

59,322,199

183,350,387
Total 135,107,667 768,717,842 491,166J68 1394,991,877

At 30 June 2020

Trade payables

Payments received in advance

Third party payments

Retentions

VAT payable

Audit fees

Service Gratuity
Other payables

3,500,000

49,856,921

520,284,970

51,277,180

122,167,729

25,634,424

47,692,420
55,128,095

289,595,791 289,595,791

520,284,970

51,277,180

122,167,729

25,634,424

3,500,000
47,692,420

104,985,016
Total 53,356,921 822,184,819 289,595,791 1,165,137,530
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iv. Foreign Currency Risk
The school has transactional cumency exposures which arises through purchase of goods and services
that are done in currencies other than local currency. Transactions made in foreign currency are
converted to Kenya Shilling at the time of transaction using the prevailing exchange rate.

Y Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the School's financial condition may be adversely affected as a result
of changes in interest rate levels. The School's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits. This
exposes the School's cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from
interest rate movements on the School's deposits.

vi. Capital Risk Management
The objective of the School's capital risk management is to safeguard the Council's ability to continue
as a going concern. The capital structure comprises of the following funds:

2021 2020
IGhs kshs

Revaluation Reserve 4,539,728,060 4,539,728,060
Accumulated surplus 1,304360,295 1,631,606,730
Deferred Income 3,333,940,654 3,307,547 ,596

9,178,029,009 9,479,992,396

10 Transfer from ts and cres

Name

Amount
recognised to
statement of

comprehensive
income

Kshs

Amount
deferred under

deferred
income

Kshs

Amount
recognised
in capital

fund
IGhs

Total grant
income during

the year
Kshs

2020-2021

Kshs

Ministry of Public
Service & Gender

408,834,990 80,000,000 4s8,834,ee0 

I I 
84s,678,60r
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11 Government grants
Recurrent grant- development partners

Recurrent grant-G.O.K

12 Other Income
Deferred Income

Rent

Interest from investments

Miscellaneous receipts

Water Bottling sales

13 Council erpenses

Chairman Honoraria
Sitting allowances

Other expenses

14 Employee costs

Salaries and wages

Gratuity
Bonus
Staff training
Staff medical
Staff welfare
Staff uniform

15 Repairs and maintenance
Maintenance of building and grounds

Maintenance of borehole

Maintenance of equipment

Motor vehicle repairs

16 Disposal of essets

Gain on disposal of motor vehicle through write off
Loss on demolition of buildings to pave way for
construction
Loss on disposaV demolition

1,013,840,647 1,030,293 ,861

202r
kshs

47,155,220

419,856,990

2020

kshs

28,337,600

313,223,327
467 l0 341,560,927

531606,942

14,671,559

7,176,521
2,151,504

77,442,851

14,532,798

14,202,423

15,310,515

21,448,5813,274,563

80,881,089 142,937,168

1,020,000

2,420,000

2,097,221

1,020,000

5,638,000

4,284,602
5,537221 10,942,602

951,467,949

29,4E6,017

3,216,910
27,430333

1,780,182

4s92s6

901,279,542
24,001,828

33,276,179

5,509,647

39,329,151

22,695,749
4,201,765

19,517,769

792,726

4,910,100

8,226247

34,384,993

9,6E9,169

12,422,027

56,496,189

2,526,200
(66,790,782)

(64,264,582)
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021
kshs

l,g47rg4g
1,224,108

61,2271491

14,193,122

742,907

44,737,536

25,370,748

144,169

93r7121480

10,032,994
251,060

3,873J10
230,097

2,832,000

30,898,174

19,011,125

1,160,844

288,711
1,301,600

2020

kshs

11,207,479

1,437,513

93,258,065

33,571,822
6,711,387

75,066,504
25,498,443

6,487,453
201,944,098

14,973,532

2,170,735
13,467,402

3,681,744

4,753,455
28,539,512
13,431,224

501,386

5,098,285

305,570

941,772
(9,958,904)

14,344,506

1,303,489

6,816,689

16,958,520

8,423,221

3,046,198

12,973,413

44,594,205

1,823,741

6,348,901

2,000,000

13,889,456

185,852

1,286,276

17 General expenses

Advertising and publicity
Bank charges

Casual wages

Cleaning and sanitation
Conference committees and seminars

Domestic travel
Electricity
External travel costs

Food and ration
Gas and fuel
Field study trips
Hire of accomodation
Hire of transport
Hire of consultancy
ICT costs

Insurance

ISO Certification
Legal fees

Marketing
Performance contracting expenses

Printing & publishing

Provision for bad debts

Refined fuels
Research expenses

Security expenses

Stationery for participants

Stationery for staff
Sundry expense

Telephone and fax
Training and consultancy

Water and conservancy

Hospitality expense

Audit fees

Water bottling costs

Corporate Social Responsibility
Library expenses

Other expenses

14,508,259

14,117,261
293,817

5,731,421
17,196,146

644,287

509,626
4,420,294

41,039,553

2,996372
4,956,522
2,000,000
8,508,829

41,271
521387

1,4041388 2,627 ,534
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOYERNMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2020
kshs

1,997,435,196

5,446,01I
1,946,543,164 l,97l,ggg,l75

The land in Lower Kabete, Baringo and Embu campuses are on a lease issued by Government
for a period of99 years.

20 Investments
Treasury bond-3O years @l2Yo P.a-Face value
Kshs.5M
Discount amortisation
Fair value as at 30th June

4,629,994 4,612,026

16,868 16,869

4,6451762 4,628,894

19 Leasehold land
At I July
Amotisation charge for the year

At 30th June

a. Short term
b. Long term

21 Inventories
Nairobi
Eldi
Baringo
Embu
Matuga
Mombasa

22 Receivables
Trade debtors

Provision for bad debts

Staff debtors

Other receivables

2021
kshs

1,971,989,175
(25,446,011)

154,859 154,296

4,474,599
4,645,762 8,894

17,877,446
223,240

10,696,527

5,856,171

51353,019

71679r03g

21,040,971

992,159

2,894,975
2,707,309
2,667,046

3, I 53,993
47,685,441 33,456,352

1,406,003,008

(154,660,111)
1,274,746,935
(t ,61l)

1,251,342,997

8,786,890

22,480,673

1,134,417,224

10,703,909

55,065,593
1,282,610,450 1,200,196,725
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021

kshs

134r50,000
11,000,000

90,000,000

I1,000,000

2020

kshs

23 Cash deposits
Name of bank
Kenya Commercial bank- Mortgage lien account

Kenya Commercial bank- Car lien account

24 Cash and cash equivalent
Bank

Cash in hand

Petty cash

145,250,000 101,000,000

Note
24a 267,496,104 691,34',7,878

(l)
669,650 945 147

26E,165,754 692,293,024

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalent
24a Current Account

Nameofbank BankaccountNo. Currency
KCB Corporate 1145987281 Kshs

KCB Corporate I145987184 USD
KCB Embu 1146029837 Kshs

KCB Kwale 1146019173 Kshs
KCB Mombasa 1145993303 Kshs
KCB Baringo I145978851 Kshs

KCB Nairobi 1107057957 USD
KCB Eldi 1107050251 USD
KCB Nairobi 1106972732 Kshs
KCB Eldi 1106676823 Kshs
NBK 01003000909500 Kshs

25 Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Payments received in advance

Third party payments

Retentions
VAT payable

Service Gratuity
Audit fees

PAYE
NHIF
Helb
Withholding Taxes (VAT & Income)

StaffRemittances
Other payables

23,667 ,096
2671496,104 691,347,878

289,595,791
520,284,970

51,277,180

122,167,729

25,634,424
47,692,420

3,500,000

13,987,381

1,517,052

90,251
5,789,801

28,472,436

55,128,095

86,542,026
154,670,605

599,990

(500,011)

1,137,990

1,049,990

10,772

(642)
218,658

99,630

495,911,219

154,952,701

625,240

603,001

599,990

544,774

10,639

8,074
459,690

99,630
37,532,920

428,344,169

476,465,465

56,296,580

149,275,046
36,438,031

59322,199
5,500,000

31,901,799

3,046,652
218,857

10,592,963

87347,396
50242,720
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERI\MENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

25 Contingent liabilities
i. Julie Nyawira Mathenge sued the Institute over Plot Nos. I I 509- l I 5 l4 Lower Kabete Nairobi. She

was allegedly allocated the said plots which stand on the School's plot. She filed a court case HCC
No. 679 of 2006 at high court. The titles were revoked through a gazutte notice in November 2010
by the Minister of Lands Hon. James Orengo. The School has requested L.G. Kimani & Co.
Advocates to pursue the matter and ensure the titles revert back to Kenya School of Govemment.
Evidence of KSG witness concluded in June 2020 and remaining Public service witness evidence
is due to be tendered by AG as well as EACC. Next hearing date to be communicated by court.

(b) Mombasa Env. &Land Ct. No. 94 of 2012 - Kalliste Ltd. -vs- A.G, Tulsi Construction Ltd. &
KSG - The A.G. (Mombasa Office) who is also a defendant is representing the Government and
KSG in the case. The Plaintiff claims that it was allocated land by Government which is directly
opposite KSG Mombasa campus where the Ultra Modem Complex is being built and seeks
compensation by Government. The A.G. has prepared witnesses and documents (survey plans and
witnesses from the Ministry of Lands, Department of Survey and KSG Mombasa) showing that the
allocation to the Plaintiff was illegal. The School's efforts to get EACC to be enjoined due to the
fraudulent acquisition of KSG land by the Plaintiff have not been successful. Hearing started on
January 28,2020 and is ongoing.

iii. Milimani NRB HCCC no. l5l of 2016 ;Fahari Building & Civil Engineering LTD. -vs- the Hon.
Attorney General. The Claimant Fahari Building & Civil Engineering Ltd was awarded the
contract for construction of the conference facility at the KSG Matuga campus in 2008. Claimant
raised issues of re-measurement of the works in 2010 which were dealt with to the satisfaction of
the contractor and the client campus in 201 l. At the handing over of the building in20l2 Claimant
repeated the issue of re-measurements in the hope of a more favourable finding. Remeasurements
were done by the Ministry of Public Works in 2013 which Matuga Campus rejected as they were
undeserved. Plaintiff claims Kshs 12,554,980 which includes the last moiety retention totaling
Kshs 3,416,552. Advocates for the Claimant are seeking settlement through arbitration. The AG
will advise on presence of any merit in settlement negotiations.

iv. Nairobi ELRC Petition No. 135 Of 2016; Obuya Bagaka -Vs- Kenya School Of Government. The
Attorney General (Nairobi Litigation Department) is representing KSG with the support of one
external counsel. The Petitioner who was a faculty member at KSG Nairobi filed a case
challenging his interdiction and termination of service in October 2016. The claim is for salary and
allowances from the date of termination of employment and damages for unfair termination. The
Employment court ruled that Obuya Bagaka's dismissal was unfair because proper procedures
were not followed and awarded him damages. However, the School appealed and hearing date is
yet to be issued.

vi. Employment And Labour Relations Court Nakuru, Cause No. 109 Of 2018; June Chebet -Vs-
Director General Kenya School Of Govemment & Anor. The Claimant June Chebet was a former
employee of KSG Baringo Campus who alleges that she was unfairly terminated from
employment. She is represented by Sabaya & Associates Advocates of Nakuru. The claim is for
compensation for alleged wrongful termination of employment as well as damages. Ruling was
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KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

25 Contingentliabilities
delivered on February 7,2019 and judgment was for the Claimant. An application by KSG for
seeking orders to set aside the judgement of the lower court was made and hearing date is yet to be

vii. Arbitration Between Teledata Technologies Ltd. -vs- Tulsi Construction Ltd, & KSG. The
Attorney General (Nairobi Litigation Department) is representing KSG. Teledata Technologies Ltd
is one of the sub-contractors engaged at the ongoing Ultra Modern Centre under construction at
Mombasa Campus. The main contractor is Tulsi Conshuction Limited. Teledata commenced
arbitration proceedings pursuant to the terms of its sub-contract with Tulsi Construction Ltd to
claim payment of Kshs 14,024,117.13 for delivery of construction items in2014 and 2015 which
the Main contractor failed to pay for. The Arbitration proceedings commenced in April, 20lE with
Colins Odipo as sole Arbitrator. After a challenge to jurisdiction in May,2018, the Arbitrator
withdrew and an Order was duly issued on 7th June 2018. The sub-contractor (Claimant) has not
taken steps to appoint another arbitrator or seek resumption of the proceedings. However, the claim
was paid and Teledata continues to perform its sub-contract works with the materials for which a

claim was made.

viii Chief Magistrate's Court Nakuru, Civil Case No. 306 Of 2019 Africa Commercial Motor Group

-Vs- Kenya School Of Govemment & Trident Insurance Company Ltd. - The Attorney General
(Nakuru Litigation Department) is representing KSG. The Plaintiffl, a motor vehicle repairs
company based in Nakuru has filed a claim for payment of the cost of repairs to a KSG motor
vehicle in2017. The claim is for Kshs. 712,765.83 being the cost of repairs one of the School's
offrcial vehicles. The Attorney General entered appearance and is monitoring progress in the case.
Trident Insurance Company failed to settle the insurance claim filed by KSG due to its status as an
almost insolvent company. Through a Third Party Notice the Attorney General would be able to
get orders of court ensuring that the insurance company bears responsibility for the unpaid ctaim.

Although there can be no assurances on the above litigations, the School believes, based on the
information cunently available, that the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings would not
likely have material effect on the results of its operations.

Page 54



X
az
Erl
Fr
Cr

a()
o
tr
Srn

a CB tjttr! oo- oo

EE8(d .=U)d
Eats6
oco0i
:l d)

+HrE
io"6r\trx

frv^

EEo"Is:64)ET
a) t4
XV
3E
eSo
EPrD O)

EB
-69Ei:5

a0

Gt

o
lutvc)
E=
ES

HC)

.q)6l rr

,n

o
tJ
GI
v2
E
6l
t

a)
a0

6t

Ix'o

I

o
E
E
tr
GB

o
&
4'q)

Ec
q)
o
o)il

o\

a€
o(\l
il
fEl

Fl

Uz
z
k
rr)
z
o
F
nz
frl
EEa
o
Q
frlil
ilo
F
A

fr
o
A

'oFl
Fl
o
fE{

z
o
o
V)
f.l
&
(.)
oilgr

X
X

Eo
L
o
Qcotr-9-b
2'q
s.B
o!ts
ClL

a2

6
a

E(l)
o
U)
o)
&

1,
(l)

o
u)
c)
&

5;EE fi
fi &i s e

od
EE
.= c)oo

Ocr
EE
.= c)AO

trq)

E

o
c)

trI

o
a0
6t
E]
6tl
EI

E()
1,

o
Lq

C)
lt)
!
!)
Rt

ank
lt)

c)

o

rrt

..!E
-e2Cd

s:&E
qaOQq)

-M E
-\Y'-H
Ao\(L,E=rE

E(H= v2

7) OEE
e E ..'5
E:E H EO > rr.=
e' P g.:
= -'r, E!a !o trq;.Eg:
!r(D!f:'F b00ai

L
o
E
6l
a)

E
o,l
Eo
clt
o)
ahE
o
q)

u,
EA

s

.E;

eE;Ee
-6".A lE;3
6; +g E E

#EH&[E-- Bdb'o 5
3H-QodEre

Er E f,E e

;H fi E E f
Eg€ HEE
ts.E'E Fp s
== o lD

HHE:gEx
E A- € E H€F 62 9S I I

(B

efr
EV6bo

-b=€E
ooS
.E o.r

E 9Ei
E*$
=! 

t')
iur>,- C)=.b0=.=Ete:.2 cro o,o€8:ts;F
aFg
! $s
EeS
sHe
EID

'H!H

l-.

€
o
u2

ok&
o

rE
o
Q)a
at

cl
o)E
c!
E
o
E(!
ts
lt)
E
(l)
o0
(B

cl
E

q\
a
6l
q)
c
=o

c.t
63
o
cl
.A

o

=-o
<A(!
(l)

(l,

€

sEt;^(D

*sE;=s$
iHE ETIq
E€€ iI g;
.EE"r6ESv'EEEEEole
g HE E E ; g
EE?fiHEE
::S€T EE

g g$E € f H,

f;E[S E J $
artsEO
E!)oL

oct
H=LF
rlz a)

&E

.A

-G)62
Lq)o&axa.o
AFEb)A.oFr A0

Er
Z?
EEs
Ef,E
5hB

EEa
624
\)t\&
UaEuD<-<rH
463
gEH



o
o
u,o

clA

9.2
E$ E
9!

.s-E -Ir E &.e
- )
-O>1

f i BgE
EEi! 

'
E9HH8:.9ccf.6Eib0

;Eq FA
E,EE.E3

b0

=toRt lrl
:oji bo
oP
o
c)
63
U)
tr
d

c,
a0

GI&oxo
Eo
&
ah
c)
D
c!

GIq
k
o)E
o
Edd

U,

oo
()
tr
o\
o
o|
C)

o('l
GI
6
cl

o
U)oa
(l
o
G'
tr

rE
(H
o

C)

c)
GI
ut

,o
o)o
E
o)
RIo
E
6
d
\o\o€
\o
c.l
ca
$o

6
V

Eq)
E6
F:'oaEor
DrJoErit

o
(ff
o
s
+io
v)
€q)
'o
4b
Gt ir-o6
r.. .1i

€g)
OE
a=

'99
AO

ar2

etv
E

o
E

c.t(
oor\r-
c.t!+

r
$\o
rr
c\l

r\
c\l

(a€o
r-
F-o
o
c.l

N€
N
N
c.t

tt

ci
N
ca

N

\a
\o€
\o
NrI
$o

?
GI

q,

L
GI
0{

,E
1Joko

B

Hg
!c,
C)=
o_B

ar,

i3 c)oc)(l)E
Ecl
BS
L9

asds
D}

00

c)o
O-
El!C)E
oFl
O. d)ec)
U)(tl
s6;J.o

p
lt)E

B
a,.Aoo
=oo.trqS
=Rlu) -o

lioIn
o

o

o(J
o
v)
V

ar)
6)

E
6t

e)Ic
&

u,
€)

E
cl

(l)
q)
€)
li
o
E'
clL
F

o
€)

E
ql

c9
(D
L
LoE
o

Fl

Ero
t<

E
.EH!E
6H0)Eootro
-E ar
Gt -o9e
ar9
OH(1)-

€5-Bts9
5(!
9d

9P or

bq
o.h
UrA+r=o(6
o>
BEg.d
.o>\
clOoEEA!o

Eg

8$r'. E or .ts
CC.--E EI a': E
E E'S;
BHEI
iEsct9:9o.r'i ts d

€ g $E
B€EE

Ei€ €
e E a:
E rb E

E eE -T
dsgE€d H B

E€*8

3 stsX .9't^e Hi3 ts \o'= E€c .€EBse:: .Eas:Ef
.Eyg_Ea')

EN spHgE P€or or.H G -c.l - a
-,E E t E H E €

rEfr{EN.3Eri 5 E E 
= 

Ei s

;aEEiSge;
=v!r!a- oN;-tr O O-s; E {5gB!:
-E Gr - o - a.E 2Egf 4:.E B€#
E PSqT B E E g

T g E g gE E E E
EO

.E

E
6l
v,

Ea
EE:GIY>

E6)

eE(\l ,r



'o
C)

ot,o
&

C)

-o(B
(!
(tl
C)
(6
6

o

C)o
!
C)

F

€ -E€r68
g€ E q)

.c.t 8.;
Soor!-e*€ H
ESEE
*+ [3oEoo.E
>.5e-[: E."E

EiHs*
€ 5 oJ2 i

# E hE g

o0

o
o0
tro
U1

o
(!

C)

ooq)
&

E
lt)

o
LE
o)
o)D
o
(B

rA

E

o
Lx
E
tro

E
-9otr
=ERl(d
hU crE9PoijE
ts'oP
0)o=
FE8E5E
>\LiO
9cool
ilr o-l

=rn c
EsE
JcoO

FH3
.=d(d'OE a
Eg.E
6 sa
^c!-E8.BB!Dotrtr
: HE..-tEt I

o
.o
o
(!
Ek
Y,E

=gbiE oo$.9E.E6H
EE EE
E9E'E
.= b ooE
,E F.€ 

=E E 8_.bE r iiH
3€ aE
tr o o.:lS* E,
ci=aOP EE X
E EE I.o\)-o
SEE;g.or- E

*="qE! 3oo He 91E
H X3 d

U'
C)o
(d
(!
3

.ooE
(u

cd

o.x
o)
o
ar)

15|

8Egd
9qrOE
5=
O*
xo
oHa0)
(l)d)

C.l ,; 9ir\-c Yraut=.riV +\o aoj5(ntr-
SE Ecooo

.PGIEseq o=v tr-
ooS UF'Grf

EEg
o'(1 =9-c 

=

B; :QE a
tl56!og)

,Hocg
F (d-c

€€ !!rr- O

E $6
o c'). <r
.=t- o

i,6 B

, gEE 
E

5 € [E -BtiP-o

HE 8Ef,8

: E 
g 3E i

EE E l EE

E e ; ? E;!3; It s
.X r E eE=
Ei: iS$6Ot .YX\O'!Je{O\ > v j
b,.i..i g bHl

FHnE E 5I

--9e E*
E r r Ht

g FEIi BE

t's$Egt
8 g E'3EE

fief=*
E* ei rfi
=-C -> o\,,r
3s g i HE
Eo=O92.=!.raHI-cori'*--S
:9E6Eg
s 5€ H s H

,Es A E pE

c)
>rg
.E c,
c(!, Ef

.9 >,Etri .O (H

Hr 3.
=Pi)6=d
E EIe qo
oroo(aRlEag
(6Hes9,;
eE Ito. E>=E
xN E
f, E E.;

f.E.i

EFr o:

EsSE<HgE
0).a-o
=o4o)(6q! trE>ts86
=odgtr1A' E
ti\O--OErSfr()

0
€)

€
6l

GI
Fr
c
E
GIt-
tr
rri

1i
6l
Fr

'=6
t-{ tsqk'
(aQ

a)
€)

Ec
6lA
L
o)E
o
crl
(?l

,1
6t

E{

U8
E'=
<s.
ocl
= llr?n:!
c.i C

rn
o
o0
.!

CL

,;
C)

cl

o
(\l
o0
tr

'o
€
o

r,o
C,o
C)

o
o-
o t)
PE

N8
c)Q
o(kzo
.=o
YE
.ET
EC)
(t)!!

=>Ii (),E;.^oHE
ta9htr
oE
o\ !l)

-(Eoti
iGl
.oU'E

EG,v7dl( rE

o
&
u,
(D

E
6l

6l
A



ro
o

oo
c)
&

!o
C)

o
.A
6)
Lr

Eo
o
U'
0)
&

E(l)
o
v)
6)
&

.o-
o
do
o
o
o)

c,

U'

os
0)'o

l!

d
al,

6)

(H
o
v,o

€

B;Er€
u:E B.eab
E EE
.r2O_
c c.€'a -i ie

F,€ E
o =(H;€s
E 6DP
od-E

e3€EgE
FPc
E 38
9.HE5g n
>E f
-6EEl-o

9 EEOict
aHQ€5E

It-
o
N

CN
c\I

\0
\o
U'E
6
V
E
tr
GI

o\
t

oo

oN
\0t\
€€t+
oo
v,
cnv

o0
tr
o
o0

o
o

o
Gt

o
oo
C)

&

6
U'
a)kq

ar2oE
a
o
tr
6)()
tr
G,

G,E
(l)
E
'o
Q)

E
oa
0)
Lr

v)

=o
o
a
6
d
k
Q)

t\

a
GI
0L
0)

=a;=c,E .9(1)aa
E-g
C)=-c o0ec)
O()
o.-'EE
EO
o ctl
-c o\

E56E.k (E

EA
fie,a.-

o.9
e!
tr O)
9E>'-869a

o
(u

,.8
o)

.o
'o
c)E
o
A
v)
IB

tro
GI

GI

ax
6)

bo
()

.G,
ah

GI
rrl

;
o
cl
U'

='o
C)

o
o0

cL
C)
Lr

c)€
GI
u,
>\
(B
!
r-
tro
c)
U'

B
6
v)
c)
a

€

oood
o

u)()
oa
U)
(Dlr

dok
o

B
N
o
c\l
th

o
(!

bI)o
&

cl
o
ct

frr
o
E
o{
o

o
r
cn
o\

o
cl

h0
rl)

6
r^
(l)

a
tr

o
(H
o
o'o
tr
C)L

(r,

tr

GI

oo
Cd
(l)
>\
o
tro
G,

L<

€
u0

<,
G,
o

o

o
6
o)E

(+{
o
olo
c.t
\at
6
o\€
v,
o
V

,
o\
o
N
()

o
c.l
cl
u1
GI
Lq)

1'
tro
E
v)

.a
o
=!
o
o
o
6)
B
Nq\

ooo
o\
an

.Av

lt)

bD

o

E
0)
o
o()
oL
6
RI

B

0
uto
a
tr

cl
E
!o
cUo

13

u,Ek
ooo
t2
v,
a)

a

o
Ei
Q)

rE

oo
oD
o

!

oo
o\
o
N
()
a
o
(Y]

cl
6
d

o
t,
oE
cd

C)
tr
cl

rE
qr
o
tr
C)

c)
GI
u,

;qr9soPC)

65
hL

E(.l
=r.lSE
'o o\
EE
>\oo
GIH,IA
=Eor)
HV
rD 9pE.E
radox
9arEO8!cld
o!frtg_o

+<do>,,t
.9Lt9
EO

.o
C)E
o
a
0)
c)p
o
c,

v)

ok

E PH
gEaH

H $€ € E
oE b:{!3o 6J o 5:L

E;EHs
tEE{g
n rfi E *
I r TE E:
€.EE I ntsrE;E E E

$; E 3:.;
€ f E € E P

E € $^E E E
E E R d3 o,
9'E1E,I5il10.EOc{

E
63

(D@
o1n
Frd,G' oo-i6
xcL
C)

o
\o\o
(
orrlt

U'

0u
(H
o
E
u)

U'q)
ah

oE
ut

oo
o

U)

o

o0

o.
=ooo
U)o()
o
a
E
6)

o
&
o
E
(.I
oo

\or-
rr
N
v,
u,
V

t6
l\kr\ct'^ d)
O\F

s5c)tr
-gu; a)

€HVs
s6
(i 0)
oGl
*-6

E=
do

-ts8
EIEoo
o

tc orkiN
ar(1;)
(l)ofiz

a0
Aaz

EH
clL
g<
?5
EEoc)Fl 3oo
ciE

(n

&
fElt= A0
LE
SEZct

EE,8EO:
!q F

v1
6)x
6l
F
u0
E
1'
oE

B



i

E
(t)

o
U'
lt)
&

1,
lt)

o
U)o

D

'oo
ot)
c)
&

60

Brodl -:EsrE
E# E E

€X:EE
-coHAd E€ g
t9vr9o e 60=g H€ 3: A.EE
= 9'd.=
"Ea.E=
9E E H

f;EEg

!9cr
3r
cc!(t)Q
Pr
7)d

-Eea- (d

€88>
8:
L()o5E9
€,oE
ot oF.' E

o
adp.
o)

a
o

,ts
!o
c)
ID

oo
C)

Bo
tr
o
tr
Q)&

Oltt
o
o0
.!

EL

cttr
-o
l1)

o

x(\l
E
E
E
d
o

x
GIF
C)

EE)
od
iiE
e6
-x.=()
E=o(Etrin
b8t>
.E .s
(g=

IE

E
E
(B

t/7
c)Ho

cr,

o
(\,

Ud
B
RI

EI

o<
o)

B
>r
a
tsoo
o

.t)

H9
SU0.E5h
aO
ZE

.d

=;ooc.t E
h.:

=E8s
.= c)o,
'oEgE
sebr
=dEEo ll)trr3
.!>tro6h

Eo

'o\
(a)

\o
$in
U'

rrtv
o
bo

o
E
d
u)
c)
X
GI

C)-o

o

€E,t
M oF
O0X\otr.=sF
=;i\oi: =c{o'o r\P C) rrt
g B=Gla

-.i=0sEf
-SVaa

€eE'
<6O\i5
Q- O
lOeo(.t X
€qr.So E^rErt]
3si
H cg-
,<acr(BE
oqE6sr
-rn =;5>€3*
oo 4

o
EE

a.r tii at

E'EE
IC€ID-oo,q600
i!.=

EEEo990A=5 -eo:o-:
-AL93ts;E
:Egd6
.E E 8€
f F, f.ar.dtsO
=E=9
;E g E
aA'-d)

EEESA.= cE:Q.9 e0eHir
E 4E E

€58fi

o
o
ootoa
o

€o
L<
o)o

(+r

o
(l)

C)

B
r\
o
N
op
o
o
o

E
!,)
o
o)

o
C)

o)
o)o
o
tr
E
GI

o
o
lt)

o
o)

ti
€
(g

>\€
'o
o)
a
ooo

U)

o
oso

U)
o5
9io
o
o
Eo

,ts
ooo
o
ol
a
o
V
bI)
tr
d
o
o
tr
oo

Cd

o)

rd

E
o)
6o.o

an

q
d
GI
c)
Cd
U)6.o
Eo

c!
U)
E
oo
o)

tro
EE
(n

(!
;a; E5

€r;E
e=EE
EEF,S

t, $t E E
E>E-89
L.iotfa€

i;€EFE:aoqLr
E t 5 g,€
H E E9 o
,r E ) O.€
FEE H8E*,7 x.Bs e e; E

F#€ +c
FEE gT

oi
o(\l
()

oai
d
ah
6
L
clo
>\
It)

o
tr
d

o
L
o
E

.o
ot)

E
(!
U'

o

L
6l
H
o

u)

l.a
a- ,r;sdU



a

GI

!
cl
o0

o
bI)
tro
U'

6
6)
U,o
(\l

(H
o
o
(l

C!

oro
EO:z ooH(!
ZA CL

oo
o

cn
o)

!
Eo
d
tr
d
E
L.o
rt
bI)
(l)

o)
U)
6
GI

r3
(l)
x

rE
(l)

F

Gt

o
Iql
F]
N

U'

6l
V)

Eo
o
U'o
Ltp

Eo
o
ar)
o)
L<

D

F;EE i
fi &i s e

OGt
EE.=o
AO

ORt
EE.H6
QO

o
EI

E
o()
tro
EI
q)
u0
ct
E
ctt-a

tU

,
a)

oE
9P,,
a)tr
-o cq

oro
?a',il
l\Z

6)

!
C)
troE
99o.H a,rDtr.oq
6-

o.o3;
>E<u)
oi:l\z

L
o
E
6l
o

E
o
&
E
o
GIto
a2!
o
a)

00

o
No(l)N

€q>
ts5
.s3
3 c.l

Br
d<h

'(uoR
cdo\at9-r
ESo

Ei r
3pE€E g
*E o
E!3
O*g

=-Y boo t
EExo(\|xL)g U

9o
.Ei f 6 L?- E-9 Pr b

Ii€EEgIE
=Hx'2.EsE.*" E E b $-E n €

€ E f i t € i :
EE€EEiEE"
H..E :: E.p E; B

E$€g;::HE
E E { qE E E 3:
E E q S"E g E T =,.

EgS;;=:EH
E f dg Fp€ 3. E f

lE iE EEt as
(DL
EO
E9
OL

o6t
ErgF
eil
&E

E*;gaErs(tscd.f9

SEHE#Ei f,sEv a
't='=troE=

Ea*aag

EIEggE
Efi*E;E

sEgEEE
.A

E
(D

E

=e
'=r>'=
EZ
EIL
6q)JF.u

F{C

E
rEEs
E9
r5?
Hc)
.iFl

X
nz
fEI
F{
Pi

o
N

eo\
o
6l
il
rq

FI

Uz
z
fEazo
F
az
rdE{a
Eo
U
f-I
&
ilotr
a
H

fro
C{

Bo
Fl
FIofr
zo
o
cn
tEIil()
oil
C{

X
X

H
e?

EHE

Ega
624Oda
Bes"ut4,t
<r.H

HEE



x
oz
H
Pr
Fr

Eg E
.8ts 8S-.a a)

8B(l)Gtk?
9, .o8pE5c).-LrE
CRI
.eE
.AH

3toGitr.i 6t9ELio

ET
tsE
EE
EGI
EggE
.tEFG)

o.l
t7
6)

!

E
€)

qt

axq)
E

GIo
eo\
o
N
il
r{

F1

q)
z
z
f*
cnzo
t<

ezri
E
Eo
L)
lr]4
ilo
t<

e

EEr

o
F.

Boj
FIo
f=
zo
rr)a
H
&(,
oil
Fr

X
X

ah

cl
a

!d
i)

o
U)
C)

&

'(,o
o
th
o)
&

EEEE i
fi &i s e

od
EE.=6oo

Ofrt
EE.h6oo

E(l)
E
E
oI
E
(D

E
c)
a0
ct
E
cl

132

6
d

o
o
cn

6
c,
!o
V)

(Btra
(H O.)

.BP
=5';: o

g)6)
o,2'Eo Pg, 6)HX
6a)0a
Gi=

Cdo
EE
h.A
doH

(+io
g(0
vq)
e60(!c

; gE

E€E
Eg:
= trrak (.)-I E,Ecd9.*

s.,.gs
Es fr

Lo
E
6l
o)E
Eot
tto
6lt
!)
ahE
o
e
?h
.A

U'
choCu)o-t69
g.

EOOrotrq)9

tr=
q-! (t)F=isJJ:
or Ho
E E8
3 *N
eE g
: *3
5 Hs
a3O+

'€ 

6t

.EH H

ZITYE E\o ov.)5;\O
rN3c-$o X\oO E\i

d,gE
A H'S HXftns€r.8{.s(H.Y-o;
:.E BE;
E FE;€
$E € g E
E E g{ f;
EHg=i
s:Ei€
f gE frE e
E E'l E [f.=.eE6'e8

€ s $;r $qvt-tj O 1i

E $ E E $E

J?eab:
sil
o.1p
o$-q r-
€6
,aAU'O9$
b .o^

6\o
E;RVd
-r- tDE6E
E r,E>r() Eotro
!g(t,oi3sOr-Gltrb
o9q€ Hr

a.= ..

E3!
3; E
l1) N(\

2? o

s €.E

th

--lEcat,oll).E'= E 85;

F;; gE 
E

oe2O=-

EE E fiE E

E*EE€E

ieE e E€
€ EEF €;
#H€E E E3€< 8.85

g; IEEE
=cdotrE=E.r€ 9o E

TEE ETE
(DL
EO:o
E9
oE

(D6t

H=
e6
EE

Eo
.E
q).rb
,t i.

E.A
Es-aA

E(D/zDOq,CJ GI

o
Eo
cl

6t
I
A

2eqg
F{ Cl

.f

t'r

EEs
5HB

EEe
d2aOEe
Eed

HEE



o

'(,o
-zoo
0)
&

X
az
H
Fr
F{

o)

o,(,
o0

o
!
ar,

a
Bo

€

No
eo\
o
GI
il
rq

Fl

Iz
z
fr
CAzo
H
az
frl
E
E
o
(J
H
&
il
o
ti
n

t\
o
A

Bo
FI
Flotr
zo
rn
U)
frl
&I
oil
A{

X
X

(\
ro
c,
EO
.E.L

EEtrraEo c-
o'E 

=Eooo(lo

EEstr:c{
8 toe
E E,iatd
b6:
EE'OaE3
9tn'- cNo (dr\l as
d0ti-

E€ga0xNE)oi

!,E3"
EEt H

eE gE
!(l)do
aXcBC)t tr-o-o

o

.e4 1e! = a) (t)'t
o= o'E E i995.//'o'- = >

tEE*E*4uq*6-U--
E 6 (l) ra orE

E€ tEEf
E;.AEsE
.E EEE*f

aI } E; ;
EEE;HfiEl b; EI H s E.E ?

$EBEI i

u,

vl
V
o
o0

GI

o

GO

r-
N
i
o\
N
o
ol
ca

0v
q<
o

a0
o
€
E
tr(!

car-
o!t
o
c{
U'

v,v
+ro
6
Eo

at

o
,E
lt)
E

o)

!
6

o
(B

ok
GI

o)o
E
c,
6
!
rr1

.o
o)
1,

o

v,
CdEo
N

Eo
or
sl

-o
ot)

1'
GI
6

o
0)
Q)o
a)

RI

GI

$
\o
o\
\o(\
r

U1

6v
(+{
o

o
E
Gt

cl
U)
c)E
c)
tr
C)o
cl
c,
.o
U)os
Rt

q)
o()
L.

E€ E
,Y()E€ E f;E

fl8fil3$I d Fl= E

He;tgr
!EENEE.?Eac.idE'

* E EHEE

$!EE$E
CE R.H IHOIEEEl??
a==-Otr.o

a0

t,
6l
v,

=u2vq)
!pE
ES

E!)
',; 6)
Gl fr

,,
€)()
tr
GI
q3

E

.A

rO
EEll ct

a
=6t;!

U'

GI

(n

FEEIA
fi &i s e

Eo
E

oI
Eq)

E
(,)
a0
6
Eql

E

L
o

G'
ql
e)

E
ot
E
o
clto
ahE
o
€)

v,0

(l)L
EO?a
E9
oL

q, 6t2-5ELFe0
EE

F
a2
EEE
HHil- <z
5HB

EIa
624OEa
Bed

EEE



E
C)

o
U)
C)

&

o

o
tn
o
L

-o
(l)

o
U)
0)fr

D

X
nz
trl
Frq

Oci
EE.!6oo

io
(I)
E

o
LA
o
!)s
o)

6
U)

d
(l)

o

h0
tr
o
h0
tro
o

\t
o\\0
o\o
co
al
U)

6
V
+.
o
G)o
tr
G,

GI

!
C)

63

oxo
tr

Gt

o
a0g

=U'(l)

oltr-
oo
c-l
\o
N
U'

6
V
o
E
C)

tr
o
(d

Eord

o
La
o

o
E
ao
o'o
C)

o)

o
Bo

h
o)

o(l)
o,
v,
o)

N
o\
c.t

co

o
.a
V
!
tr
C!

lat

co
o$
c.l
\o
ta

.Av
(
(nr\
o\o(\l
oo
,t,

IAv
+io

H
(B

u,
1,
tr
C!

-rr)tr
o

J4o
G)

o
ooo(l
v)
'(,
6t

J(g
GI
D
+ro
bI)

ar,

a
E
o
c)
\o
cast
(\|r-

thE
U.
M
q<
o
ta
c)o
d

E
o)
L

H
(B

u,
IA

o(l)
&
63

(tta
l<
lt)t
o
'otr6

qr
o
tt)o
.B
ad
!
o

EoE)
o

0
trot
o
(B
rn

(!
o
(g
tr

rE
tt)

o
$
c.l
o
o

cr)
a)
c)
tr
6l

c)L

bo

o
oo

o
rn

tro
(0

o
troo
c)
&

ts
GI
U2

E(I)
L
oaa
u)
E

oolo
ao\
o
N
&
H

F]

Qz
z
fr
azo
t'r

nz
F{
E
Eo(J
fr1
&
ilo
Er

n

tro
cr

Fo
Fl
Fl
o
EE(

zo
u)0
fElil
(J
o
&
A{

X
X

(n
rI,
o
oo(!
o-

!o
E

r{=
tro
c)
(l)p
o
E
ooo

q)

o
c.l
ct
.A
ct
o
c.t
r
r-
co

r
\o

,t
a
V(rr
o
C)o
RI
clp
U'()
,o
GI
>\
GIq

E
tr6
oEd
C)

q<
o
u,
U'
a)
tr
C)

C)

a
Eoo
E
tr.!
>ro(!
H

=c)
c)
(q

o

h

o)

doq)

o
C)

:i x_oHS:
i€g>ts B
F.e E

TB;x(!HcUE(,rGl(d
9Ps !.H9 or

='E IYiD(\,

E:El8c'i'+
C)H-tro hI)6doo c3a*o\E
if h o;trdEb'- E !! ..=

.EgE E
Gl l! 'ti qr

E:EE
E E Ei
.E.E E :

l-6
(H OE: Bg
3d-=ocoEi s
EEE?Ee-
.4"$
3Ei
.e 8:I e-E
-E="9s9e
E gEH
=gE E E.

*$ E e€.f85
.s€"-Eu
!ora (dO\gNe.d
-= rEs
,EgE$

.Ebs€go9
E()
(gE

€r
E'o
U)(B

-83(Htgrj
aCn
a -l5n'; \o
o-io.-
td6
YQHV
rEo(lr c)o9
ECt
ii=
E.E!)o
=c)6s
e9,*i clHo.

E ge
fcll:
: E09
=E 

tr

EEq<Efr

=Est'i 
'C

a)I
E
6l
GI
E
c
E
G'

6l

F

E'
6)
L
oea
O
E

(f)

u2

6
u)

EEEIE
fi &i s e

Eo
E
il
oI
trq)

q)
u0
GI

6t!ra

Lo
E
G,

C)

tso
&
o
GI

E(l)
anEo
a)

c^v,

(DL
tlo
E9oLr

oGt
He
EE
EE

a

E(1?E2

EEsF<Z6re
EEe
Q2a\-l l\&

BedaD<tl
<r-,H

EEE



,

E
(l)

o
U)o
d

X
Az
H
A
A

clk
C)

lt)
o
(H
o
c{
f-
oo

=v)9qH 6.)pEl

6EtE
ct, '6
q)H
Pa)
EH9u,
E(l)

EE
ir. trotr
6E

c)
E
6J

d
cl
o
cl
0

o
tr
()
o
a

-st.- (O
Po
=oo=a!Eo.
€
No\o
e.l$q
o
v,
E
u,v
0
o
C)Eo
o
tro
tr
(!)

d
t2

o

o
c.l

(l)

oz.o
E
RI
(l)
o
RI

L
-9
]roo
(B

o
(!

rE

o
trq)

0)
G!

.A
o
t-

o
6)ETE
tseobo5r-.=$
Glo
)x
'o\EO\c, \o
>r \oo
d(,)H-C)u,
8M(go
6)P

E bI)

EE9o
SE)23H.EdEr gE
oxts€:rE
r.tgE€E3
EooFJ O0 ..o

B
C)

rt)

rc
arl

€
.1,
o'o
o
La
o
tr
6)
C),

c)
C)

t
C)
u,
L
o
69
tro

ooE
o
crt

!
o()
(l)

E
6B

U'
Eo

ao

Hfi
=ohE oEE A

EhsE
Es^0B.Hsri9
ii9 "; a

E#grc! 6 bOts
9a o.E 6

F* gE
E 8.8 H

f,g FB.E b.: a
o oI.l or'fr83i
E g:E
EEgE

B
lt)

o

E
(B

€
!
c)'o

o
G)

o)

'6tr
o)
trx
GIa
(l)

o
Eoa
o.
ta
tr
rt

o)
Eaoo
!

o
c.t
(f)

6
6
rr
o|

cn

o
V
b0

GI

o

(q

>r
C)

()
o)
o.rto
L

ca
c{

o\\o
o\

1'
(!

\oo
6lc\€
ca

an

V
E
((l

\o
$
Fr
$
o\
o
.A
V
(H
o
6
v,o()
tro
al
!o
E
ooo
d

E.sgE
=o!E€.E E
belb
paEuS
E E€'*
F6=;(E$Ei
P dE .SE=d'6E^^E:=
5B HE
E.# H E?v? oo'5 H'5 .Ec-cu1
cd I 6dE
A9FL.= =.= 0)

tsE3E
-d)e'^E e.o.-
E 5; g
C)U,H.6
E EgE
E E.i E.#XaX

F (l).= C)

o
sq
o\

6t
&
H

FI

(J
z
z
fE
rr)zo
F
Az
fEltsa
Eo()
fElil
ilo
Er

o

t\o
Fr

Bo
FI
FIotr
zo
U)
u)
E{
&IoilA
X
X

sl U1 Ecror.l Et-{ >\ C

T F;E!E
fi $E
EE?
L, t-{ O

a2oL

E
(l)axo

E
o)
L
oaa
o,
tr

U'

cl
a

:EEIi
fi B.i s e

tr(l,
A

E
oI
E
€)

Eo
bD
GI
EI6l
EI

L
o
trt
qt
q)

E
o
&
trc
6lt
(l)
U)o
o
6)

ar2
ah

ertsEO!o
Et)oL.

oGt.2-
EFe0
EE

Fr

a2

EEE

EEa
Qea\)l\&
Ead

EEE



o)

o
ar)o
l<

E
c)

o
ah
rt)
il

X
az
fEl
A
Fr

(d
L.o
tr
o)o

.2

! 8i 3
E€dr

-E*8 H
€p..i o-

.iER
3HdgGi:
.a 6l u:

5eE
EUts
C'- .houE'5(l)0)
9?oQ
o-o E
(BEU='6-E
E€-o
E .., oo,=N c
u'^!
9E EE-HPEEE{:(B_C)
or;4
(D.E-n

Eg E

bo

o
bI)g
o
rn

o
0=

r sf E a
!o.rP(JYttEsH'
H I9= A
5s.IH*oEo)=e

J B€?€U)Qor.I 6\],-k=.-

E 3t rEEoo,.-oZo9!ltrI
^- - (, o)c.il;- ,E (l) -cv9-A'Uc- c tr; o

s6 E: e

.jso
l<
c0z

irE be(D65
or tr€ B 'd:X E* E

EEgEEE

EBEf,Ef,

B
(B

o
(*
o
o(d
o)
L{I
tr
IA

o

o()
(l)

tr
0)
x
o)
c)

o
F

'(,o
rn

!
(€
v)o
os
o
tr
Li
C)

o

'o
t
=oo

o
(H
o
o

o
V)
o)k
o)

(H
o
Ch
v)o

6
c)

F
+jo

oa
M
0)

(+r
o
\o
\o

tro
oo
v)
t
B
(l)
o
tr(!qo
Lr
ooo
(g

o
tr
=o

L)
q-r
o
1..os
E()
E
(g
U)d

<! c.:r() .+.r

B. Iq6'
9l6Q
H()
ho
TAP

.i .1,
ad)

LIO
c) <n>9
oH

'o\Yo
aNEr'-s
=2o:
(l)r-

!! (H

FO
-: a0
o.=
E8EEX_6) ;i
c.r 9
?=

E5

o
cBo
o

d
(g

L
€
=os
B
bo

t
(D
u)

rd
o)

tr

oo

s

trog
C),oo\
(o
(1) (..t
a>a
.eH
-oc
dE
!e-oE
>v
d rl)€k

H*oo
L
6-=6)c)LE
EE
.e()

o9
etuo
O)f

oX
v tt)

^rnol=
LH

TL (J

o r.:'

--E .gE
H'$GHrr.orr 1i b

E 
q;E € E

E= SE ET
'=ol ss trc..i/
i"cuEof-l
E ht E X }
"Eg€.8E4; ts xE s'0

Ee i gq ?5 P E 6r E

E E E5: E

x 3? E F i
g 

X E Ba *.8E=Ea&.:E><iOcrE<=<<€

r-
o
o
C)a
L.
c).o

Eo'd
o
a
cr,
Gt
ra
LoE
(l)

o
tr
o
O
o
cB

o
tr
(l)
Lo

o
B
u)
trov,
(l)a
o
U'
C)o
cd

Bo
(\,

b0
tr

U1
(H
o

L
,E

oo
oa

C)

s
E
(d
o.
ooo
aa!f
v,
t)
V
U)

o
a0

rE
U)

t

'do
!

o
tr

o
6toq
o\
o
N
&
fEl

Fl

L)z
z
tr
azo
t-r

az
rq\3a
Eo
Q
rd
&
&o
Er

a

fE.o
B

Bo
F1
FIo
Frr

zo
ao
rd
&(,
o
&
A{

X
X

a0

cq

U,

o
a0
E
o
Fl

0t-
€)E
Eotia
I
E

o
U

IA

cl
a

*EaE fi
E &i s f

tr
€)

oI
E
c)
tr
(!)
a0
.di

6l
al

fr
o
1,
6l
q)

a
o
rii

o
6lt
c)
v7E
o

o

c
d
E
q)
()to
li
e
a)il

68

CB

EI
fio
xo

t

Er4?
EEs
HEilF<Z
5tB

Ege
dzeOEa
BaEaD<r^
<t-,H

EEg



a

E(l)
o0
(D

&

Eo
X
az
fEl
F{
Fr

U)q)

u)
tr
z
ad

U)(l)
(B
o
!
tr

o

'

L
clA
\o
o
N
C)o
toa
o
&
Fi
tsi

€

t2
It)
L

Eo
<)o
0r
E
tr
c,
U)oo
oA

tr
(B

E

o
U)
U)

E

o
O
oo
to
v)
o
I
A

2Etr€ frEeirj € h'E oO-.Y<.rOoe >..E I I
sEs;;! E sc.lX=ev.Y tt LreHg€
EAA9

BE if
B 9 b.r,
'9-^

,E.sE.E
-r)(!)C)UE€(/)
-U)G)-6)ia tr5-c

r B= e
=EN oo
E c b-g
t.9t p

E:A a

B
cl
6)

qi
o
o
cg
(l)
ks
rt)

tr
c)
E
C)
o0
6,
tr
Rt

c)

a)
x
c)
C)

ot-

6€(r)
o)Eo

rd
(d

(H
o

.V
v,
L
o

o
o
U)o

15
rn
tr
o
o
Eo-o
q)

6I)
tr

ts
lt)
L.
tr

cl
oE

(l)

€
Eo
!

o
La
tro
o)
!
6
G,

o
d
c,
ax()
oz
do
>\
o
P

E
(l)
U

o
l.r

Eo
c,
E
G)tr
!
tr
.(,
a)

'd
C)

o
o
L
(g

o

B

o
c.loc!
>a

o\
tro

N
ro
t'-
rn

6

o
V
E
GI

oo
c.t
r-€
o\
ca

v,
ar,

V
q<
o

fr{

z

at)
GI

B

o
E
B
o
No
N
C)
tr
a
+i
o

o
E

rq

p{
aH
o
tr
ooo
cB

tr
o
U)to
C)

!o
o)

o

d
U)

C)l{6
o
cn
r

r-
c.t

\
\o

U1
Eo
6l

-80BE
.:o
o=
EEDE
rl irl

(,
o
o
<Ao
ad

6)
H
(D
o
(B
(go

frr

z
!
GI

rq

A
C)

F<

cr)

U'
M
(H
o
oo
6J

COp
u,op
€
R,a
o
o
!
cl
lt)'o
C€L
(l)

B(!
(l)

(lr
o
o
GIo
!
tr
th

(l)

o
hI)
(q

d|<z
o

-q

c)
x
c)
o

oF

IA'E-O
A9cr'E-2

g 
= flfi E pua(Do-oo=

8 E;.8 E i
I IEg EeE*li (q E.,g6<6 xE
TEEf;E
EEIBE$
E ?s E cI
bEEEEH
T g; aT E
.9 9 ooH E:!*a-u

EE'E--?;

H FE?i$

tro
(!

a0
6)
&
P-

o
Eo
o0
(d

(!

o

t
d
li

coo
U,

e
t\t
t\
o\
e6t
&
tri

Fl

(J
z
z
tu
0zo
t-{

az
Htaa
t=lao
U
rqil
&o
H
a

fro
Fr

Bo
FI
>1ot\
zo
U)a
fEl
&(,
oil
C{

X
X

H
cd
P
U)
L
(€

bI)
c)

ah

6l
U)

EEEIfi
fi &i s e

E
e)
E
E
oI

Lo
E
ct
o)

E
o
&
Ec
GIt
o)
tnE
o
(!)

o
ch

(DL
EO
E9

oGt
H=
e0
E,E

t'r
eg

EEs
E#E

EEa
dza
OEqz
EeE0<.'<rH

EEE



X
Az
H
Fr
0{

(o
o
h0l!
o-

C)

E
c,
q)

o0

.A
o

c)

€oI
u)

.d
E

N
()
ox
o
E
0
Cd
It)

Gt

€
Bo
cC

E
6

(!

lt)
oq
o
ooo
t,o!o
B
G)

an
(.)

o
ado
lr

Rt

k
o)

GI

GI

(\,
o
c(l

cd
It)
tl,

Eo
'o
G,

B
6

q)

IJ
L<(tlo
6)
o
c)
cd

U)
U'o
ah

r<ia

aho'(,
o
a
o

B

n
ta
L
ao
A
\0
o
N
oo
tq)a
C)

!
A
€

U'

()
U)
V
d

63

E
ah

B

a
Eo()
!
o
U,

b
>rE

He q
Eq

+ o eB
EE BE: oa-
s g€ t
E TE g
j p 9E
cg!)sHFlsr
;EgH
€E8&
E SE E

E: IE
Eig H
-a, z .E .2
o5E

f R s5

rt)
o
tro

ID
l<(!
6

o

li
dg
o)
a
0)
GI

a

Lr
o

E&
q2

E
(!

o
6Io
ao\
o
6l
il
rq

Fl

(J
z
z
l*azo
F
az
rd
E
Eo
U
kl
&
ilo
H
A

tuo
Cr
H

Bo
FI
FIofr
zo
0
u)
Hil(,
o
&
Cr

X
X

U'

6l
a

EEEIi
fi &$ s e

E
(l)

E:oI

Lo

ql
o)E
Eo
E
Eo
GI

E
c)
o2E
o
o)

t,
U2

(l)L
EO
E9orr

oGt
H=tFe6
&E

aa t

EE;
5hB

EEa
d2aOi.u
Eet'

EEE



4..

X
ez
HA
Fr

@ro
@
oo
t!

CL

o
€)

o
oI
q,

I
6)

o
ti

n{
fF
o
U'

6t

u)

U)
Lo
tro'o

-o.o
(l)
!
d
6)L
Q)

B
ti
GI
o,x
6)
.<
oo
tr
L.

'o
oo

-q
C)

U)
o

ho
tr(u

J(cl
ts
(D
'o

C,'

()
o'a
Lrga

9(l)o-c
Ocr
F{;
XE
><z

X
nz
HA
F{

o
th0oE9E
=.Eoa

|4
o
o

q
o
d

vo vo
(,

1nE
Ch

V
G,

(,

a

ooo
doo
d
c.l

Ooq
o
O
o^
o
C!

oo
o^
ooo
d$

o
ooo
6

eh

U)

V
Q)
o0

tr

ooo
do
o^
Ost

oo
ooO
o\t

oo
o^
oo
o^
o
oo

ooo
o\o

o
9Eo
3s Eotr
U

soo s
6l

so\ s
N

I
gz;
ZE(D |va
Or Fr
xc)o:
E€o
Fr

o
co
c-t
co\or\
r\
c.to

€r-t+
\ao€
o\

ooo
ooo
€

o
O
O
o
Oo
$
c?)

aoa
6\oio
€(.I

U'oq)

Ed
Es
cl
o
F

o
co
(fl

co\o
c-
r-
cno

cA
c.l
o
ro
rsr\

co\o
o\
€
rr)
cO(\
\o

oo\o
rat
o\\o
o\
c.l

$
\o
r-
No
\o
roia
?a

c)q)'d
!r
0.

clt,
(rl
-o
Eo\<z
I

,<Io
o()
Eo-o
o
E
(l

(\l
b0

cl

I
}1oo
-o
co

+.o
tro
o
L
an

tro(J

o
ho

L
da
I

J(oo
!
tro

(r.
o
o
o
e
t,
tro()

=..oc
EI

I
(D
L
tro()

o

(.)

oo
o
o
o
li

o()
(\leO$

Hz
frl
Hg IZEE'^) 9N

EEEoaHoEa
q EE
=l\Z11 u t'l

8E{
Q E8
A Oa jtr

<&H

EEE



t

KENYA SCHOOL OF GOVERNMENT
Annual Report and Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

APPENDIX III

XXI INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

Break down of Transfers from the State Department of Public Service Youth
& Gender Affairs
FY 20t2t

a Recurrent Grants
Bank Statement Date Aoount (KShs) FY

n/0912020 66,805,831 2020-2021
0Ut2t2020 66,805,832 2020-2021

07/0412021 66,805,832 2020-2021
05105/2021 50,417,495 2020-202t
0510712021 158,000,000 2020-202t

Total 408.834.990

b. Development Grants
Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs) FY

05105/2021 80,000,000 2020-2021

Total 80.000.000

c. Direct Pavments
Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs) FY

NONE

Total

d Donor Receipts
Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs) FY

NONE
Total

Page 59
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